Unity Investments Holdings Limited
E—BBorsroA
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability )

(RHSBeIMRIZAERAF)
Stock Code AR{A 5% : 913

ANNUAL REPORT

2020



Contents
E

Corporate Information A& & ¥

Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and

Analysis HITEEREREREN R RN
Biographical Details of Directors % %l A & &
Directors’ Report =EERE
Corporate Governance Report E¥EARE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRiE (& K EARE
Independent Auditor’s Report &7 #% £t Al ¥k &
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 434 & mE Uz &

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 45 & B 7 Ak 0 3%

P

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4&R4EmEHREK
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #4AMREEZESH K
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & Bf 73R & M 51

Financial Summary BI#%# 2

Page
B R

13

17

26

48

61

69

70

72

73

74

160

A REZERARADAF 2020 F &

1



Corporate Information
NAIE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director
SHUM Kit Lan Anita

Non-executive Director
HU Xiaoting

Independent Non-executive Directors
HUNG Cho Sing

CHUNG Fai Chun

YU Tat Chi Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

YU Tat Chi Michael (Chairman)
HUNG Cho Sing

CHUNG Fai Chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HUNG Cho Sing (Chairman)
CHUNG Fai Chun

YU Tat Chi Michael

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
HUNG Cho Sing (Chairman)
CHUNG Fai Chun

YU Tat Chi Michael

COMPANY SECRETARY
ONG King Keung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

CUSTODIAN
Chong Hing Bank Limited

2 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

EEg
BITES
LR

FHTES
Elay o

BYFHTES
HEE
BEY

A3 4=

ﬂ:\}%/bx

BTREY
REL (EE)
g
EFY

FHEEE
HEE (R
EBY
REE

REZESE
HIEE (EE)
BEY

AyE
RIELE

DNEME
TR

FEERBEIT

FE LBESRITAERRAR

BIBRITAR AR

REA
AIEIRTTER A A



Corporate Information
NAIE R

INVESTMENT MANAGER

Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
Room 2004-6, 20/F

China Evergrande Centre

38 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1006, 10th Floor, 299QRC

287-299 Queen’s Road Central

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
913

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.unity913.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/unity/index.htm

RELE

FREXKRER (BE)BRDA
BRI

H T ITE385R

f B A AR D

20/£2004-6=

% 4]

BT Ee st EE AR AR
RS AT

EBNBE

EZAUz]

AN EZESHE 101

A SR
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

EBTEEEME
B LR

25 KRB 287-2995%
299QRC 10#£1006 =

ERROBEERE

BEZRERERAA
BA
ERRBEBEI183

A FE L

54i%

R AR
913

DR
www.unity913.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/unity/index.htm

A—RAEBAERARF 2020 £8 3



Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

FINAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group’s audited consolidated net loss attributable
to shareholders was approximately HK$42.4 million for
the Year which was mainly attributable to the loss from
the sale of listed equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, while the changes in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss were
the principal factors to the corresponding loss amount
of approximately HK$70.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Loss per share for the Year was
approximately HK$0.20 (2079: 0.38 (Restated)).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2079: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment company and the
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 27 October 1999, pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the Year, the
Group remains principally engaged in listed investments in
Hong Kong and in unlisted companies.

Given the liquidity of stock markets worldwide was
highly improved during the Year, the performance of
listed investment of the Group enhanced accordingly. The
listed equity investments has posted net realized gain
of approximately HK$14,000 (2019: loss of HK$101.6
million) and unrealised gain of approximately HK$9.4
million (2019: HK$74.6 million). During the Year, the
Board remained focus on listed equity in Hong Kong.
The Company is cautious in identifying any investment
opportunities to achieve medium-term or long-term capital
appreciation.

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

RAAEBRRE —REERAR2A ([FD
ANEFg ([EEg)REARR MEK
Brrl(ABEIAEE])BEZE-_FT-_FF
T-A=T-"BLEFE(XRFE]) 2EE
S

EEEBERRERE
AEEBAFEZBRREBHEEZEEER
SEEE 4 BB 842,400,000 T E AR
EERBERBAABINEZ EWRAKRE
ZEBB MEBBREAAEIERZ
BREAKEAARBEHRERHE_T—N
F+ZRA=+—RHLFEHAEERBROBE
70,600,000 E B H = - AN F EHREE
4 BB H0.207T (= F — L 4F : F#0.387T
(#5&E31) ) °

EEETHBERAFREIRNRERE (=F
—NF HE)

E 3 3C1)

ARBR/BRERF HBROHREZTBHE
RHMARRR ([BXAF])ESRF LR
A (TERRADENZEE - NNNFTA
Tt ERBEBRXAER LT -RAFE
AEBENATEZERTBRELTRE LK
BIFLEHARA-

ERNAFERIRREMIS 2 ME LS &
ARE ARAEE EMEEZRKRIAE
ERE FTMRARERFS S ERKEF
BA 14,000 (ZFE—NF BHEB
#101,600,0007T ) + & & B IR Y 2= 4078 &
9,400,0007T ( =& — N5 : B 74,600,000
TL) RAFERN EESEREZ INEE
B2 EMER - ARREYEEMEE#RS
R REREE EMERFPEIRGEER
H(E o



Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In order to keep reasonable spread of the Group’s
investments, the Board will maintain a diversified
investment portfolio to cover a wide range of business
sectors, including, but not limited to, companies engaged
in sectors such as finance, consumer goods and services,
media, construction, mining, etc.

All the investments of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are equity investments as follows:

RTREMDBAKENRE E5S4E
RETEREEE UWREEEZITE H
TEE(ETRMNEES/RE BEEM
FRTG % - IR EE - BENIRIEEA R A] -

AEER T _TFEF+_RA=+—HZF
BREHBUATEAKRE

Approximate
percentage of
the Group’s

Market consolidated net
value asset value
LEREEREEE
miE FESYESH
HK$'000
BET T
Listed investments FHERE 114,872 50.1%
Unlisted investments FELFME”E 100,592 43.8%
215,464
Net asset value BEFE 229,493

In connection with unlisted investments, the Group
principally held three unlisted equity investment projects
with attractive potentials. These three investee companies
are Keen Champ Investments Limited ("Keen Champ”),
Peak Zone Group Limited (“Peak Zone"”) and Pure Power
Holdings Limited (“Pure Power").

MIELTIREMS  AEEXEREF=IBAR
BERSIBNNIELTRAREER - Z =K
WIRERNFAREBREARAR ([BE])
Peak Zone Group Limited ([Peak Zone ])
X Pure Power Holdings Limited ([Pure
Power |) °
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

The principal business of Keen Champ Group is holding
operating rights and forestry management of forest trees.
Peak Zone Group principally engages in the electronic
commerce industry specializing on the provision of
integrated application, which can be deployed by its
customers on a modular or selective basis, offering
flexibility in budget and choice. Pure Power Group is
running natural resources exploration and exploitation
business in America.

Based on the valuation reports and other relevant
documents, the valuation of the Group’s stake in Peak
Zone, Keen Champ and Pure Power as at 31 December
2020 were approximately HK$14.7 million, HK$66.8
million and HK$19.0 million. Accordingly, there were
decreases in the value of investment in Peak Zone Keen
Champ, and Pure Power of approximately HK$19.0 million,
HK$6.4 million and HK$22.3 million during the year.

During the Year, the Group partially disposed 314 shares
or 3.7% of its equity interest in Pure Power Holdings
Limited. Gain on disposal of approximately HK$2.8 million
was recorded during the Year.

Set out below are further details on the above unlisted
investments as at 31 December 2020:

Keen Champ

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
unaudited consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Keen Champ was approximately HK$1 million.
The loss was due to operation with sizeable scale is yet to
commence. Taking global growth in lumber consumption
in these few years into account, the Company believes
Keen Champ will bring a positive return to the Group
when its scale operation commences.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

Peak Zone

For the financial year ended 31 December, 2020, the
unaudited consolidated net profit attributable to equity
holders of Peak Zone was approximately HK$2.4 million.
Peak Zone group is beginning to develop its business
in Eastern China area and continuing the development
of related and advanced systems to provide more
comprehensive services to increase its revenue. The
Company expects that the Peak Zone group is still with a
high business growth potential.

Pure Power

For the financial year ended 31 December, 2020, the
unaudited consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Pure Power was approximately US$13,000.
The loss was due to operation with sizeable scale is yet
to commence. In view of the significance of petroleum
with limited supply, the Company expects that Pure Power
group will bring a positive return to the Group in long run
after commencement of the petroleum exploration of Pure
Power.

In addition to three unlisted investments above, the Group
held two significant listed equity investments, which are
WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") (HKSE stock code: 8021)
and AMCO United Holding Limited (“AMCO") (HKSE stock
code: 630) as at 31 December 2020.

Peak Zone
HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILBHKF
[ ' Peak Zone EEm A AL REHFIZER
A K5 B %) 75 #2,400,0007T ° Peak Zone &
EFERERM R FER LSRR EH
FSLERS WIEHEZERS EMEK
# o ANARITEHiPeak Zone EENABE X
M EBIERE

Pure Power

HE_ZT_TF+__A=T—HLLMEF
J€ - Pure Power #1548 ABIG RS T ZER
BB FEE A413,000E T BB TR
RABARREE ERNABEREH-ENE
T ANQFFEEI A Pure Power B 44 4 JiH &
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

WHLS is principally engaged in the scaffolding and fitting
out services, management contracting services and other
services for construction and buildings work, money
lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business. For the
year ended 30 April 2020, the audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of WLS was HK$108,888,000. As
WLS is one of the leading scaffolding sub-contractors in
the industry, the management of WLS are confident about
securing more contracts which based on the HKSAR's land
supply and residential units forecast in the coming years.
The Company believes the WLS's business strategy is in
line with the overall direction of the government'’s strategic
development plans for property construction, infrastructure
investment and financial market development, and profit
will be generated in medium terms.

AMCO is principally engaged in medical devices
business, plastic moulding business, building contract
works business, money lending business and securities
investment. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the audited consolidated loss attributable to owners of
AMCO was HK$34,546,000. AMCO persist to build on
its diversified business portfolio and focus its steps to
formulate, evaluate and modify business strategies of their
existing businesses in order to facilitate and motivate their
business development and stabilise any downturn impact.
To cope with the business development of the business
segments, AMCO strive to deploy effective and sufficient
capital and resources allocation in respect of the different
business segments, and actively reallocate its assets,
funding and labour force in response to the changing
market and industry conditions and business results. The
Company believes that the business strategies of AMCO
and its efforts in controlling expenditure will improve
the return to its shareholders continuously in the coming
years.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFTREMNEEEm MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resource, Capital Structure and
Gearing Ratio

The Group's asset portfolio was mainly financed by
internally generated cash resources and fund raising
activities. As at 31 December 2020, net current assets of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$128.9 million
(2019: HK$116.8 million) with cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$0.7 million (2019: HK$0.3 million). The
consolidated net asset value per share of the Company as
at 31 December 2020 was HK$1.03 (2019: HK$0.14). The
consolidated net asset value per share as at 31 December
2020 is calculated based on the net assets of the Group of
approximately HK$229.5 million (2019: HK$265.1 million)
and 223,471,680 ordinary shares of the Company at par
value of HK$0.001 each in issue as at that date (2019:
1,862,316,806 shares at par value of HK$0.10 each).

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no
outstanding bank borrowing (2019: Nil). The gearing ratio
of the Group was 0.3% as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
0.5%), which is calculated based on the Group’s total
liabilities divided by its total assets. Taking into account of
the amount of liquid assets in hand and available short-
term or margin loan facilities, the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
requirements.

Charge of Assets and Margin Facilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, margin facilities
from several regulated securities brokers were granted
to the Group which were secured by the Group’s listed
investments. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group had not utilised against these facilities.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Year, the Company does not have any
significant acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 14 employees
(2019: 7), including directors of the Company. They
are remunerated based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and share option scheme. There has
been no significant change in the Group’s remuneration

policy.

Comprehensive disclosure of directors’ emoluments
pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is set out in note 9(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group's exposures to foreign currencies mainly
arises from its investments in companies located in the
PRC, which are financed internally. In order to mitigate
the potential impact of currency fluctuations, the Group
closely monitors its foreign currency exposures and will use
suitable hedging instruments against significant foreign
currency exposures, where necessary. No foreign currency
hedge contract was entered into by the Group during
the Year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no
outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts (2019: Nil).
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets and Their Expected of Funding in Coming Year
As at 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
Annual Report approved, the Company does not have any
concrete plan for material investments or capital assets.

PROSPECTS

Year 2020 is the most challenging period since bankruptcy
of the Lehman Brothers in Year 2008. The outbreak of
COVID-19 has killed over 2.7 million people and infected
more than 120 million people globally. Business activities
were suspended in a large extent over the world. The
investment sentiment, however, is not as poor as the
economic environment. The stock indices of major stock
markets, including Dow Jones Industrial Index and Hang
Sang Index, generally rebounded sharply after the first
quarter Year 2020. The rising trends continues in the first
quarter of Year 2021.

In the U.S., Dow Jones Industrial Average Index
experienced cliff diving from over 29,500 points in mid
February 2020 to below 19,000 points in March 2020.
Since March 2020, many events happened which might
stimulate the stock markets positively, such as the QE
Infinity adopted by the Federal Reserve in March 2020.
The Federal Reserve, in its own words, launched its
aggressive effort to offset the extraordinary economical
turmoil caused by the coronavirus outbreak by rolling
out its biggest weapon. In addition, the completion of
President Election Campaign in November 2020 removed
significant uncertainty to the investors. The launch of
Covid-19 vaccine in early Year 2021 gives the hopes to
end the Covid-19 pandemic and the stock market bloomed
accordingly.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

In Europe, the European Commission expected that Euro
zone growth in 2021 to rebound less than expected,
as a second wave of pandemic put economies in new
lockdowns. The Commission forecast economic growth
in 19 countries sharing the euro would be 3.8% this year
and the same in 2022, rallying from a 6.8% drop in 2020.
Last November, the Commission forecast 2021 euro zone
growth at 4.2% and 2022 growth at 3.0% against a 7.8%
recession in 2020.

Although the European economy started the new year on
a weak footing, light has now appeared at the end of the
tunnel. As vaccination campaigns gain momentum and
the pressure on health systems to subside, containment
measures are set to relax gradually.

China is the county where COVID-19 firstly appeared. It is
also the first country adopting stringent lockdown policy in
its largely infected area, i.e. Wuhan and quarantine policy
in its major cities. After a couple of months of coronavirus
quarantine, China is slowly emerging from its shutdowns
by restarting production at factories and resuming some
flights. China can now develop its COVID-19 vaccine and
gifted them to other countries. A recovery in the world’s
second-largest economy provides some relief for global
manufacturers in the months ahead as the outbreak
continues to wreak havoc in Europe and U.S.

In view of the above analysis, the Board considered that
the economy recovery of China (including Hong Kong) will
be at a faster pace than those in U.S. and Europe. The
Board will continue to place its investment in China and
Hong Kong principally, and monitor the market dynamics,
and adopt a conservative approach on investments, so as
to enhance value to our Shareholders.
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Executive Director’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

HITEFHREREEE wm AT

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our appreciation to the staff and
management team of the Group for their contribution
during the Year and also to give our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their continuous support.

By order of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REZRERAQA

SHUM Kit Lan Anita
Executive Director

Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESEARBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shum Kit Lan Anita, aged 59, is a director and a
responsible officer of Chariot Capital Management Limited.
She is currently a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Ms. Shum has a wealth of working
experience in securities advisory, corporate finance,
corporate management and fund management. Ms. Shum
was appointed as an executive director (”Director”) of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited in November 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. HU Xiaoting, aged 41, holds a Master degree
in Finance from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics. She has over 10 years’ solid experience in
finance industry in the PRC. Ms. HU was appointed as a
non-executive Director in June 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 80, has over 30 years of
experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. Mr. HUNG
has been the chairman of Hong Kong, Kowloon and New
Territories Motion Picture Industry Association Limited since
1991 and was the chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards
Association Limited from 1993 to 1995. Mr. Hung was
appointed by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") Government as a member of the Hong Kong
Film Development Council from 2007 to 31 March 2013.
Mr. Hung was also appointed as a consultant of the China
Film Association since 2013. Mr. Hung is also a member
of HKSAR Election Committee and a vice chairman of the
Cultural Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (E®R%&
BERAFREGVCERXRZE®AEEZE) . Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to
the Hong Kong Film industry. Mr. Hung has been appointed
by the HKSAR Government as a non-official member of the
Working Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative
Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries under
the Economic Development Commission since 17 January
2013. He has been the vice chairman of Film Association
of Guangdong, China since November 2016. Mr. Hung
was appointed as independent non-executive Director
in October 2014. Mr. Hung is currently an executive
director of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8101). He is also an independent non-executive
director of Oshidori International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 622), KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code:
8226), Miko International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1247) and China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code:
326). Mr. Hung was a non-executive director of Universe
International Holdings Limited (now known as “Universe
Entertainment and Culture Group Company Limited”,
stock code: 1046) up to July 2019. All these companies are
listed on either the Main Board or the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESEARBRE

Ms. Chung Fai Chun, aged 55, is currently a deputy
general manager of a watchcase factory. She has over
18 years’ ample experience in the watchcase production
industry, and has a wealth of experience in marketing,
business operation and management. Ms. Chung was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in
December 2014.

Mr. Yu Tat Chi Michael, aged 56, holds a bachelor of
commerce degree from the University of New South Wales,
Australia. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. YU is also a founding member
of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association. Mr. YU has many years of experience in
accounting, corporate finance and asset management. He
had held senior management positions in several listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of Golden Resources
Development International Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
677), EVOC Intelligent Technology Company Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2308), Applied Development Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 519), China Netcom Technology
Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 8071), and Lerado Financial Group
Company Limited (a company limited on Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1225). Mr. YU has
extensive experience in the field of accounting. Mr. Yu
was appointed as independent non-executive Director in
August 2020.
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Directors’ Report
EEZWE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Unity Investments
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein present
their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are investment
holding. During the Year, the Group was principally
engaged in listed investments in Hong Kong, main stock
markets around the world, and also in unlisted companies.

The segment information of the Group for the Year is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
69, 157 and 70 to 71, respectively.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
Year (2019: Nil) and the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2079. Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely
future development

Please refer to “Executive Director’s Statement & Management
Discussion & Analysis” on pages 4 to 13.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

Environmental Protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to
achieve efficient utilisation of resources through launching
paper recycling and setting auto power saving mode on
the Company’s computers in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's principal activities are investments in listed
or unlisted financial instruments in Hong Kong and
elsewhere. The Company has to invest in accordance
with the restrictions stated in its articles of association.
Meanwhile, the Company is a company listed in Hong
Kong. The Group also has to comply with the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report and to the best of the Directors’
knowledge and belief, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions as far as its investments are concerned.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations,
seminars and training courses related to their roles and
duties through leave grants. Competitive remuneration
is also offered to employees and their performance is
reviewed on an annual basis reflecting each employee’s
contributions to the Group.
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Directors’ Report
EEZWE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out on page
160. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Year in share capital
of the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Director:
Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita

Non-executive Director:
Ms. HU Xiaoting

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
Mr. CHAN Yik Pun (Retired on 29 June 2020)

Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun
Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael (Appointed on 17 August 2020)
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

In accordance with Article 157 of the articles of association
of the Company, Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita and Mr. HUNG
Cho Sing shall retire from office and Mr. YU Tat Chi
Michael shall retire from office in accordance with Article
123 of the articles of association of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 26 to 47.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST-PAID EMPLOYEES

Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest-paid employees of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 9(a) and 9(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or
were deemed to have any Discloseable Interests or Short
Position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing
Rules (collectively "Discloseable Interests or Short
Positions”).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate, neither the Directors nor any
of their spouses or children under age of eighteen, had
any right to subscribe for the securities or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to and in which
Directors had a material interest in, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and
their respective associates had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition
with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and
subject to the provisions of the statutes, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall
be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune which may
happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution
of the duties of his office or in relation thereto, provided
that the Company's articles of association shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands. The Company has
maintained Directors and officers liability insurance during
the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
as detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any
individual, firm or corporate entity to manage or regulate
the whole of any substantial part of the Company’'s
business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of existing share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 30 April 2013 are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance to all staff. Under the MPF
Scheme, employer and employees are each required to
make mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme and
contributions to the MPF Scheme vested immediately.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARE

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2020, there was no person who had
any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with
its related parties during the Year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Year and were not
aware any transaction requiring disclosure of connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company although there are
no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float in compliance with
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

24 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

BERSFRBEKRIIZETHEE
ERRERRAR

RZZBZTFF+_A=+—H TBALR
RABRDKABERDFHEERBEES R
HA &I B XV BB 3E2 37 BRI XA A AR A
AW E  KALHENARRREEANMPE
B ZE336IEREFE ZERMKASITA
CARNBREBB I EAERIAR -

HBIRXZRBERS

Briza IS MAMT2FHEEIN KEE
RAFEGEERERTETERRS

EECHARBRAFEZEB IR HE
1786 BYTABEFAIRE EmRRIRE
BIFRER HWBENR S

BERBEHE
BERENELARUERBELERERE L
[R&| ARB B ERARTEELEEE
BZIRTE -

RBREREZEARE
RERARB ARG ZAREMELESR
M RAERBH ARAEFT IR AR
BB ARG LM RIES.08(F 2 HTE



Directors’ Report
EEEHE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) as at the date of this report comprises all
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. YU Tat
Chi Michael, Mr. HUNG Cho Sing and Ms. CHUNG Fai
Chun. Mr. YU Tai Chi Michael is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee, along with management, has
reviewed the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, including accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and also discussed
matters such as internal controls, risk management, audit
and financial reporting, including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements, for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Unity Investments Holdings Limited

B-REZRERQA

SHUM Kit Lan Anita
Executive Director

Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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PHEEIRMRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is dedicated to an ongoing
enhancement of effective and efficient corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing
framework for the Company to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has applied the principles set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

For the Year, the Company has complied with all code
provisions set out in the CG Code, except for code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of which will be
explained below.

Based on Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Company has no Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
since the resignation of Mr. NG Chi Hoi on 1 August
2016. The Board's current significant decisions are made
in Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights
and responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss
significant issues he/she concerns, and has the power to
make the decisions among other Board members.

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to
re-election. Ms. HU Xiaoting, the non-executive Director,
and Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael, an independent non-executive
Director, have no specific term of appointment but they
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company's articles of association. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
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The practice of the corporate governance of the Company
will be reviewed and updated from time to time in order
to comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Upon specific enquiry by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
an executive Director, namely Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita;
a non-executive Director, namely Ms. HU Xiaoting; and
three independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"),
namely Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun and
Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael. None of the Directors are, in any
respect, related to each other in any circumstances. Mr. YU
Tat Chi Michael has appropriate professional accounting
experience and expertise. The Board membership is covered
by recognised professional accounting and experienced
personnel so as to bring in valuable contribution and
professional advice for the development of the Company.
None of Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation. Biographical details of
each of Director are set out on pages 13 to 15.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board, at all times, has met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
representing at least one-third of the Board and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers all INEDs are independent under the definition of
the Listing Rules.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing and Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun were
appointed for a fixed terms of three years from the date of
appointment and Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael has no specific
term of appointment. All INEDs are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company.

Responsibility, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board

The Board’s responsibilities is not limited to formulating
corporate strategies and setting up of business
development plans, but to also monitor and supervise the
performance of management and review the effectiveness
of internal controls including the scope of financial,
operational, compliance,
preparing and approving financial statements of the
Group. Directors, collectively and individually, are aware
of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which Company business and affairs are managed and
operated. All Directors, including INEDs, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

risk management, as well as
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the service and
advice from the company secretary and management
of the Company. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

All Directors have grave concern, sufficient time and
attention to all significant issues and affairs of the Group.
Day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the executive board members.
Executive Board meetings are convened when necessary
to deal with day-to-day matters that require the Board's
prompt decision, and therefore it is usually that only
executive Directors would attend. Each executive Director
has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience
to hold his/her position in order to ensure that his/her
fiduciary duties can be carried out in an effective and
efficient manner. The Board has established three board
committees,
Committee and Nomination Committee (collectively
the
Company's affairs.

namely Audit Committee, Remuneration

“Board Committees”) for overseeing particular

The composition and functions of each committee are
described below. These committees have specific functions
and authority to examine issues and report to the Board
with their recommendations (if appropriate) for the
decision of the Board.
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Meeting Records

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the
Year is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the Year in
which the individual was a Board Member or Committee
Member (as the case may be).

BRLHE

RAFERN ZTESHRESFEER £8
2EREMRERG 2 REENR TR -FRA
CHFHEAFENEBALEREZEESK
S Z 88 (RBAERME)BE P
BIIZREHENE -

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meetings
Name of Director ESp? E3e EifZRE® HMZEEe REZEE LT -1
Executive Director YiTES
Ms. SHUM Kit Lan Anita MERR L 12/(12) N/A N/A N/A 1)
Nk TER it
Non-executive Director *uTES
Ms. HU Xiaoting BEERt 12/(12) N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
Nk TER it
Independent non-executive Directors BUEHTEES
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing THERE 12/(12) 22) 4114) 22) 11
Mr. CHAN Yik Pun RZRuzs (R-F_ZF
(Retired on 29 June 2020) AAZTNBER) 7/(8) 1) 3/3) 11 11)
Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun ERY UL 12/(12) 112) 44) 22) i)
Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael RETRE(R-T-%%
(Appointed on 17 August 2020) NETLREZT) 313) 1) N/A N/A N/A
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors, including the INEDs, should keep abreast
of their responsibilities as Directors and the Company's
business and activities. The company secretary continuously
update all Directors on the latest developments regarding
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses and seminars that may require keeping abreast
with the latest changes in laws, regulations and the
business environment.

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors
have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses
or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s business
or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional
development by attending training course or reading
relevant materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors and measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, skills, knowledge and professional experience.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and
candidates will be measured against objective criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee has the delegated responsibilities
to monitor the implementation and review the Board
Diversity Policy and report to the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s
Nomination Policy and will take into account this
Policy. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of
gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local practices. The
Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core
markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting
the Group's strategy.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
directors. Three of them are women. Two of the female
directors is non-executive Directors (including INED),
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Based on provision Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing.
The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights
and responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss
significant issues he/she concerns, and has the power to
make the decisions among other Board members.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees: the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, with specific responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established
in January 2003. As at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely
Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael, Mr. HUNG Cho Sing and
Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun. Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

o to consider and review the appointment, resignation
and removal of external auditor and their fees and
supervision on whether any non-auditing services
has been provided by external auditor and giving of
advice to the Board on employment of auditor

o to liaise with the Board and discuss with the external
auditor about issues of significance during the audit
of the Group

o to review the interim and annual results of the
Group
o to review the report from the external auditor in

relation to continuing connected transactions

o to discuss and monitor with management on the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, and risk management and internal control
systems

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is adopted
on 16 March 2012 and updated on 31 December 2015,
which is consistent with the CG Code and is published
on the website of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice if considers necessary.
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Code provision C3.3 of the CG Code stipulates that
members of the Audit Committee should meet at least
twice a year with the Company’s auditor regarding review
of the Group's financial information including the financial
statements and annual report and half-year report.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
two meetings, included in which two meetings were held
between the Audit Committee and the Company’s auditor
to review and discuss the Company’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and the interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2020. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the related results announcements and
reports of the Group and has submitted the same to the
Board for approval. Members of the Audit Committee
were of the opinion that the preparation of such two sets
of financial statements and related results announcements
were in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting. Number of attendance of
the Audit Committee meetings are disclosed under the
section headed “Meeting Records” above.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in September 2005 with specific written
terms of reference, which was updated and adopted
on 16 March 2012 to comply with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee also has the responsibility to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The specific terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises all INEDs, namely Mr. HUNG Cho
Sing, Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun and Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael.
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. Four meetings
were held during the Year to review the remuneration
package of existing Directors. No Director, or any of
his/her associates, and executive is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. Number of attendance of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are disclosed under
the section headed “Meeting Records” above.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012
with terms of reference to deal with the nomination of the
Director, which includes reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to recommend matters in
relation to appointments or re-appointments of Directors.
This is to ensure that the composition of the Board meets
the requirements of the Listing Rules and that the Board
is capable to fulfill its obligations in terms of fiduciary
duties and can act in the best interest of the members of
the Company. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties. The
specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises all INEDs, namely Mr. HUNG Cho
Sing, Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun and Mr. YU Tat Chi Michael.
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Two meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2020 to review the composition
of the Board and rotation of retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting; and to take up the delegated
responsibilities from the Board to review the Board
Diversity Policy as approved by the Board. Number of
attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are
disclosed under the section headed “Meeting Records”
above.
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Nomination Policy
The Board has adopted the following policy for the
nomination of directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee and the Board shall consider the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence
and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and the
Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which
are not meant to be exhaustive:

o the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character
and integrity;

o the candidate's qualifications, skills, knowledge,
business judgment and experience that are relevant
to the operations of the Group;

o the diversity perspectives set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company (as amended from
to time);

o the candidate’s availability including time

commitment to discharge his or her responsibility as
a Director, including being able to devote sufficient
time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other board and Company
associated activities (In the case of a candidate who
will be nominated as an independent non-executive
Director will be holding his or her seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the
candidate for being able to devote sufficient time to
discharge his or her responsibility as an independent
non-executive Director.);
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o the candidate for the position of an independent

non-executive Director must comply with the
independence criteria as prescribed under the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time);

° the current size and composition of the Board, the
needs of the Board and the respective committees of
the Company;

o the succession planning of members of the Board
to ensure the leadership continuity and smooth
functioning of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure
that the composition of the Board is in conformity with
the laws of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification,
recommendation, nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of each proposed Director
shall be assessed and considered by the Nomination
Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as
set out in this Policy. In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board:

evaluation,
selection and new

o the Nomination Committee may take such measures
that it considers appropriate in connection with
its identification and evaluation of candidates,
including, amongst others, considering referrals from
the Directors, shareholders, management, advisors
of the Company;
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. the Nomination Committee shall identify and e REZBSAHBIBTEREAND
ascertain the character, qualification, knowledge and TQ B HBAK R W IREA
experience of the candidate and undertake adequate ETAIPHNRRBRESLS K&
due diligence in respect of such candidate; and

. the Nomination Committee shall make o REEBESA TEFT % I IRE A B
recommendations by submitting the candidate’s AN R TESE %Fg

personal profile to the Board for its consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member HMEHZTAMBEEETSKEMS ' 1RF
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make é/\.z./,je“@ % it ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and  EAZEREAE F2HER
recommendation for the candidate to stand for re-election

at general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment HEBMEZETEENHNEZTXNETEZEMS
of a Director, the Nomination Committee shall obtain all REZZESERERSHSEN KL ETR
applicable declarations and undertaking as required under  BIJEU{S AT/ i F3 B9 &2 AR A &G ©

the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules.

In the case of a nomination for the position of an HREBUIFNTESNBRT BEREE
independent non-executive Director, the Nomination  Z@BERZMEBERBAFAE ETHRBIFTE
Committee shall ensure that the concerned candidate BN AR LE

meets the independence criteria as prescribed under the

Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters  ¥HBREARBEASG L28 (REER)
relating to the recommendation of candidates to stand for HFIBEE BEESHARLIRTIE-
election (and re-election) at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and &?Ei%ﬂ”)ﬁiv\ﬁﬁi$§
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board. fé

ﬂﬂH’r

\
/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance functions. This includes developing and
reviewing Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed the

Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's
system of risk management and internal controls and for
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Group. These risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage risks rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve
business objective, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss; and to ensure the reliability of financial information
for both internal use and external publication and to
provide reasonable assurance against material statement
or loss and achievement of the Group’s objective.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control
procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling
over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information
used for business and publication. These procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary.
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The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change
of situation; and

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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The management has carried out periodic review of
the procedures and the implementation of the risk
management and internal control (“"RM and IC") systems,
including areas covered accounting, business and legal
compliance.

The Board has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. To further strengthen the
internal control of the Group, the Company has engaged
an independent professional adviser (the “Internal
Control Adviser”) to perform independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC
systems. The Internal Control Advisor has conducted an
annual review of and made recommendations to improve
the effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC systems (the
“RM and IC Review").

During the year ended 31 December, 2020, the Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Control
Adviser, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s RM and
IC Systems in various aspects including revenue and receipt
cycle, taxation cycle and price sensitive information. The
Internal Control Adviser carried out the RM and IC Review
on the above cycles and executed the RM and IC Review
which involves the following tasks:

1. Conducting interviews with relevant management
and staff members relating to the risk management
and internal controls

2. Conducting walk-through relating to the RM and IC
Review
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3. Reviewing relevant documentation relating to the

RM and IC Review

4. Identifying significant deficiencies in the design of
the risk management and internal controls

5. Communicate the significant findings with the
management so as to confirm the factual accuracy
of the findings

After the RM and IC Review, the management provided an
action plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies
in a timely manner. All internal control findings would
be followed up closely to ensure that the action plan is
implemented accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
was satisfied that the Group’s RM and IC processes are
adequate to meet the needs of the Group in its current
business environment and that nothing has come to its
attention to cause the Board to believe the Group’s RM
and IC Systems are inadequate. Moreover, the existing
RM and IC Systems are effective and adequate, and will
continue to be reviewed, added on or updated to provide
for changes in the operating environment.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside
Information in respect of procedures and internal control
for the handling and dissemination of inside information
in a timely manner pursuant to Rule 17.19 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provision under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, as well as the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They believe that
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Group's affairs and its results. The Directors confirm, to
the best of their knowledge, information and belief, and
having made all reasonable enquiries, that they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cause significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the
external auditor of the Company, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 61 to
68.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
fee paid/payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited in respect
of audit and non-audit services were HK$360,000 (2079:
480,000) and HK$nil (2019: HK$nil), respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. ONG King Keung, who is an associate director of an
external service provider, reports to the executive director
of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. He has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 89 of the articles of association of
the Company, extraordinary general meeting(s) shall be
convened on the written requisition of (i) any two or
more members of the Company; or (i) any one member
of the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong (19th Floor, Yat Chau Building,
262 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on or before
15 April 2021 and Room 1006, 10th Floor, 299QRC, 287-
299 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, with
effect from 16 April 2021) or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
(Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands) specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided
that such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company, which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not
proceed duly to convene the meeting within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
in which these meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 161 of the articles of association of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting, unless a notice is signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) who is duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting. Such notice
is given with his intention to propose such person for
election as well as a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office (19th Floor, Yat Chau
Building, 262 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on
or before 15 April 2021 and Room 1006, 10th Floor,
299QRC, 287-299 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong, with effect from 16 April 2021) or at the
registration office (Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong).
This must be provided at the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at
least seven days and that the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting. Details of the procedures
for nomination of Directors for election are available on
the Company’s website (www.unity913.com).

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who have enquiries about shareholders’
rights or have enquiries to the Board may write to the
Company Secretary of the Company at the principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 19th Floor, Yat Chau Building,
262 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on or before
15 April 2021 and Room 1006, 10th Floor, 299QRC, 287-
299 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong,
with effect from 16 April 2021. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. For the
avoidance of doubt, the shareholder(s) must provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order for
the Company to reply.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board established a Shareholders” Communication
Policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation
to its communication with the shareholders and investors,
with the objective of ensuring effective and timely
dissemination of information to shareholders.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account the following factors:

the Group's future operations and earnings;

o the Group's capital requirements and surplus;

o the general financial conditions of the Group;

o contractual restrictions on payment of dividends;
and

o any other factors that the Board consider relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
shall be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
shall be subject to any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association
of the Company. The dividend policy of the Company
will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be proposed or
declared in any particular amount for any given period.
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The Board aims to ensure that its shareholders and
investors are well informed of key business imperatives
in a timely and accurate manner. Extensive information
about the Company’s activities was provided in its annual
report, interim report, announcements, and circulars which
are made available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company (www.unity913.com). Printed copies of
annual report, interim report, circular, notice of meetings
and proxy forms will also be sent to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner as required under the
Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has not made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. An updated version of
the Company’s Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association is available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company (www.unity913.com).
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year
ended 31 December 2020. This ESG report describes the
sustainable development approaches of and measures
implemented by the Group.

The information disclosed in this report covers the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”)
unless otherwise stated. Compared with last year, there is
no change in the reporting scope, which includes all our
operations in Hong Kong.

This ESG report has been prepared in pursuant to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
which is the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. We followed the four reporting principles,
namely materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency,
throughout the preparation of this report.

Further information about our policies and measures in
corporate governance are available in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section in this Annual Report.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges that sustainability is a significant
factor for our growth in long-term. We have been
dedicated to be a corporate citizen with a sense of social
responsibility and take sustainability into considerations for
decision making and operation.
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The Board is responsible for our ESG strategy and
reporting including evaluating and determining our ESG-
related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in
place. The management of the Company executes the ESG
strategies and practices determined by the Board, as well
as directly monitors ESG-related risks and internal controls.
With the assistance of an Internal Control Advisor, the
Audit Committee periodically reviews and assesses our
internal control system to maintain the effectiveness
of its functions. With the continuous monitoring and
improvement of risk management and internal control
system, it can enhance our sustainability.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is devoted to engaging our stakeholders and
continually enhance our ability in creating values for them.
We identify key stakeholders according to our business
and operation characteristics. We listen and respond
to their reasonable concerns through various means of
communication, including but not limited to the annual
general meeting and other regular shareholder meetings,
official website, publications such as the annual report,
interim report and other announcements and notices, etc.
We consider that views from different stakeholders enable
us in refining our strategies and setting the pace in the
pursuant of sustainability.

We actively listen to opinions in order to provide
stakeholders a quality report with useful information.
We highly appreciate feedbacks, including comments
on this report or suggestions about our sustainability
strategy. Please do not hesitate contacting us by email to
investors@unity913.com.
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Identifying Material Issues

Alongside with the channels mentioned before,
stakeholders were also invited to complete an online
questionnaire to gather their views. Integrating feedbacks
collected and management’s evaluation, we identified
“Quality of Investment”, "Data Protection and Privacy”
and "Employee Benefits” as the most important ESG issues
to the Group and its stakeholders. This exercise facilitated
us in aligning our sustainability priorities with stakeholders’
expectations and focusing on the material and relevant
issues.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Responsibility to Our Stakeholders

The Group is committed to investing in quality assets and
acting in the best long-term interests for our shareholders.
We recognize the value of making sustainable returns in
the long run. The Board is responsible for approving all
the investment/divestment decisions and formulating the
Company’s overall investment strategies and guidelines
in accordance with the investment objective and policies
of the Company. Our investment team is responsible for,
inter alia, identifying, reviewing and evaluating suitable
investment or divestment opportunities, assisting the Board
in the execution of investment and divestment decisions
and the monitoring of the investments of the Company.
When a potential investment opportunity arises, our
investment team will evaluate it thoroughly and critically in
order to reduce investment risks and protect the interests
of shareholders. In making investment decisions, we adopt
a responsible and prudent approach to balance profitability
and risk.
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We protect the information security of our stakeholders,
including business partners, employees and identified
individuals. We established various measures to ensure
effective data privacy. To safeguard our information assets
and prevent data leakage, we require our employees to
handle sensitive or confidential information cautiously.
The usage of data is strictly bound to the purposes in
accordance with relevant contract terms. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) or any other
applicable laws or regulatory requirements on data privacy
during the Year.

As the Group is principally engaged in investment, the
Group believes that products health and safety, advertising
and labelling are irrelevant to our business. Therefore, no
disclosure about policies of these issues is made in this
ESG Report.

Our People

We rely on our talented employees to provide outstanding
investment services with professional and informed
decisions. We value the contributions of our staff in the
operation and sustainable development of our business.
We understand the importance of attracting, developing
and retaining talents by providing them with an excellent
working environment and achieving mutual success
together with the Group.
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Employment and Labour Standards

We protect the legitimate rights and benefits of employees
and strictly comply with the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57), the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and other
relevant laws and regulations on employment and labour
standards.

We have specified standard working hours, holidays and
rest periods, remuneration and welfare, compensation and
dismissal in employment contracts. Employees are provided
with sick and injury leaves, maternity and paternity leaves
and other entitlements according to the laws of Hong
Kong.

The Group adheres to the principles of fairness and
mutual respect. We comply with, in all material respects,
the following ordinances and the relevant codes of
practice issued by the Equal Opportunities Commission
of Hong Kong: Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
480), Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487),
Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527), and
Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602). We treat all
employees and candidates equally and avoid any forms
including age, gender, marital status,
pregnancy, disability, religion and ethnicity, in recruitment,
remuneration and promotion. The Group does not tolerate
any child labour or forced labour. We ensure all new
joiners meet the minimum age for legal employment
through the recruitment process.

of discrimination,
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We offer competitive remuneration, promotion
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to
attract and retain talents. Our remuneration package
comprises with basic salary, MPF, five-day working week,
medical insurance and share option scheme. The package
is determined with reference to the qualifications,
performance and work experience of the individual as well
as the market rates. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically based on our operating results, individual
performance and market information.

The Group has not identified any non-compliance with
laws and regulations relating to employment, recruitment
and dismissal, equal opportunities or other issues regarding
labour standards during the Year.

Health and Safety

The Group provides a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment for employees to protect them from
occupational hazards.
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As an investment company, all our staff work in office
and are not exposed to significant health and safety risks.
Nevertheless, potential injury hazards from slips, trips and
falls for staffs remain. In order to prevent work-related
injuries and ensure the well-being of our employees, the
following measures have been implemented:

ER—RRERA RAAAEBTHERR
EIE TEERENEERZZAR A
- ADAFEABEBE - H 6 RHKEAREE
BErk- R I TEREREBNEIL
HAPIE BREA M

Strictly prohibit smoking in office to safeguard indoor air quality

BERANERE  UREENEREE

Ensure adequate ventilation and suitable lighting for efficient daily operations
FERFE R YRR NE S BVARAR - AR S 2E) B BETT

Provide adjustable office chairs and computer monitors to facilitate good posture and

reduce eye strain

REFTFSA P AR R ERE RS - LR RIFHED SO RIF & 8

Keep common areas of the office, such as corridors and pantry, hygienic and tidy

REMAELNRRIE - PILAE R K ERE B R A K&

B2

Provide occupational health guidelines for staff to raise their awareness

AETREBREERES - UWESERENER

Regularly clean the air conditioning equipment

EHB R FRE

Prepared a first-aid kit in the office in case of emergency

ERAEEFHTREUBEERBENR
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In response to the coronavirus pandemic, we have
introduced precautions to safeguard the health of our
staff:

o closely monitor the news and updates of the event
of Covid-19 coronavirus and adjust the operations
of employees accordingly if required

o virus prevention materials including surgical masks
and disinfection supplies are prepared for the office
and employees

o provide hand sanitizers for employees and visitors

o measure body temperature before entering the
office

o require staff to wear face masks in the office

o reduce face-to-face communications

o home office arrangement is adopted and

continuously reviewed to lower the risk of infection

The Group strictly abides by the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) or other relevant laws and
regulations on health and safety. During the Year, no cases
in relation to work injuries or fatalities were recorded
and we were not aware of any non-compliance with the
applicable regulations on occupational health and safety.
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Development and Training

We recognize the importance of staff training and
development for the mutual growth of both the Group and
our employees. We encourage the continuous education
of our directors and employees to further enhance their
and skills, acquiring professional knowledge and keep
abreast of the latest developments in the industry, through
participation in training organized by professional bodies.
The company secretary provides regular briefings to the
directors to ensure them understand the updates on
statutory and regulatory requirements and fully aware of
their roles and responsibilities.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s suppliers mainly include securities brokers,
professional service providers for legal, advisory and other
services, as well as various suppliers for office equipment
and hardware. Our supply chain is rather simple and the
environmental and social risk involved is relatively low.

We consider qualifications, compliance, business scale
and reputation when choosing suppliers. Our suppliers
are expected to comply with national and local laws and
regulations relating to business conduct, environmental
protection and other business practices. If a supplier is
found non-compliance with our policies or contractual
provisions, we will suspend the business relationship until
the irregularity has been rectified. The Group was not
aware of any non-compliance incidents or notable adverse
impacts on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices among our major
suppliers in the Year.
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Anti-Corruption

We believe integrity and honesty are fundamental in our
business. The Group prohibits any form of corruption,
such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
We will not hesitate to take disciplinary actions in case
of any substantiated misconduct. We strictly abide by
relevant laws and regulations including the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) and no legal cases relating
to corruption were brought against the Group or its
employees during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Being an investment company, we are also conscious of
our investment decision and its potential impact to the
environment. Should the opportunity arises, we would
consider projects for its risk and return dynamics as well as
positive environmental effects it will have.

As our operation is office based, we do not induce
substantial negative impact on the environment. The
Group strictly complies with applicable environmental laws
and regulations, such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354) and is committed to promoting a green office.
We adopt environmentally friendly measures so as to
achieve green operation.

Emissions and Use of Resources

We have no manufacturing and do not produce direct air
emission. Our environmental impact is mainly due to the
consumption of electricity, water, office supplies and the
indirect greenhouse gas emission generated therefrom. The
electricity supply, water supply and sewage discharge are
under the exclusive control of the owner and the property
manager of the office premises. We are unable to obtain
electricity and water usage data for disclosure purpose.
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Despite that, we adhere to low-carbon operations in an
effort to reduce energy and resources consumption. We
have been implementing the measures below to minimize
our impacts on the environment.

Maintain the room
temperature of the office
at an energy-efficient and

comfortable level, i.e.
between 24°C and 26°C.
BB AT BN R

EFEKF - B124°CE26°C

Prioritize the purchase of
electrical appliances with
energy efficient labels

BREEES
EIREIR R E SR

Putting computers to sleep
instead of using screen
savers when not in use

B AR AR AR -
m3EE A RIZR

Waste management

The Group does not produce physical products, generate
no hazardous waste and does not use any packaging
material. General refuse from our office mainly consists
of paper, aluminium cans and plastic bottles. We estimate
that less than 0.1 tonnes of non-hazardous waste were
generated in our office during the Year, similar to that of
the previous year.

The Group also supports waste sorting and recycling. We
dispose rechargeable batteries at designated collection
boxes and segregate used papers, letters and envelopes
for recycling.
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Maximize the use of

natural light and install
energy-efficient lighting

where practicable

RAREHFIE B R L &
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Remind employees to turn
off non-essential lighting

and office equipment

REEEE AT UE
OHCERINE NG

Swiftly notify the property
management about any
dripping or leaking pipes and
faucets for quick maintenance
InEEIE B B MoK RE SR YRR
KRR R FRBAYE

EENREITREMEE

BERYER

AEBI TN EEAVER X TNELBERE
Y AERERNEEME -BRAEELE
B —RREZY T BEBEER nfk NPT
FZ-RAFERN RAGABRAZTELNE
FEEYDR0.ME - EIBEF R

ZRER B I s H5 RE ) 0 48 Ko B - TR API A AT 52
BEABMEENEEWRER DRBBNE
SRS RAEERETTEIM



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R g kERHE

Principle of 4Rs 4R R8I
The Group advocates the “4R” principles of Reduce, NEFEER VTR EEGFHE KRELE
Reuse, Replace and Recycle with actions as follows: RAMA 4R | RA SWERERA 178 :

Reduce

D2

e Use double-sided printing and photocopying whenever possible
e Promote "Think Twice Before Copy" in the office

o FAIRE(EAEMITEI RIBEN

o EMAEHEE [=BMEH]

Reuse

ERER

¢ Reuse of single-sided paper

e Reuse pen shafts with ink refills rather than disposing them
s EEFEMAEmMMARK

s MABLNEEREMER  MIFEERRERER

Replace

RE

e Encourage the use of electronic communication means, e.g. emails and
softcopies instead of letters or fax

¢ Whenever possible, adopt virtual meeting and teleconferencing instead of
business travel to cut unnecessary trips and the GHG emission therefrom

o FENFAEF@EMAN  FINEHBREFIR - MAWIEEHIER

s FAGKAEREANEFSEZRBLE WD TBERN BT RANES
Hm = RS HEA

BERENA

* Except papers containing confidential information, all waste paper is sent to
paper mills or scrap paper collectors

e Send printer cartridges to producer for recycling

o [REEHWE BRI - PIERERID XTSRS AU SR R

o ITHIMEQIXEEERMEITOIU
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The Group believes we have reduced our emission
and conserved resources through these actions. We
will continue to identify opportunities to improve our
environmental performances.

Community Contribution

The Group strives to be a responsible corporate citizen and
cares about the development of the community where we
operate. We encourage our staff to actively participate in
social welfare activities and volunteering services or make
donations to charitable organizations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az B S

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
69 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

i) Fair value measurement of equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss
Key audit matter
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") that mainly comprise of investments in
unlisted equity securities which were measured
at fair value which categorised within Level 3 fair
value hierarchy, with the aggregate fair value of
approximately HK$100,592,000.

62 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 Unity Investments Holdings Limited

RRE®E

AZBMERERESGHMASRMZE
BRBCER ([ERBREER ) ETERT
1F o NZ BRI Z FHERIR T 2 B EEARTR
S [ZHBEERGE P BRRAREN
B — - FHFA - RIEFEGFEQ
SRz EX TR EETRI (TR
AZEE B ERE WERESTA
BITEMBREE - AXBEIRE A K
RIPTREZ ERBRERREBERZERMS
BREDIRE -

FAREFXEE

R ERERRRBAZEEN R F R A
RRYBE—_T_TF+-_A=+t—H8I
FEFBYBHRANEZRAERNER-
AEBRHREAZHMERERE MK
WRNHAAZEENE RRETRERN
BAZHM T @RS ETRREHEBNE
B

i) BREREARNBEIRZBREAREZ
DAREE
FRFZEE
R—ZE-_FEF+-_A=+—H' =
EEZEBRIEBREEAREYE ([E
BERBRAABE]) CBRAKETE
BIESERE-EARERBRAZIE
AREFEZIEEMRAFESRRE (A
AEA 4 AE100,592,0007T)



Independent Auditor’s Report

18

N ZH RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

i)

Fair value measurement of equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)

Given that the investments were unlisted equity
investments with no direct observable data in
determining the fair values of the investments at
the end of the reporting date, various valuation
techniques had been adopted by the Group to
determine the fair values of the investments.

Since the estimation of the fair values of such
unlisted equity investments is complex and highly
subjective and require significant management
judgement, we had identified the fair value
measurement of equity investment at FVPL as key
audit matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We obtained valuation reports from an independent
valuer engaged by the Group (the “Valuer”)
to assist the management of the Company in
estimating the fair value measurement of such
unlisted equity investments at the end of the
reporting period.

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objective of the Valuer.

We discussed with management of the Group how
the fair values of the unlisted equity investments as
at the end of the reporting period were determined.

We discussed with the Valuer and the
management of the Group the appropriateness
of the methodologies and assumptions being
used in arriving at the fair values of the unlisted
equity investments based on our knowledge and
understanding of the investments as well as the
information available to us.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE BE B G SERRABERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)  fEE (&)

ERBESZBCEAETERNBIEF &
THEER T EXRAE R T EREMRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: JE o A% BREM T -
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement o Bnl K BT A B R BRGF S EE AR T 8 B4R

of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

B P B WK T EE AR R E
@ RET MITERREF AR ZE
[\ DA R ERAS 5T = M B M B AR
B ERAZBAMERNER - BN
HEFARE S R ER E EERER
BB - SO B A ERES 2 L
DR 1t 7K BE % 30 R AR RF 1 B B ) B X 5
MR EREBEEERMEHHERN

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18

N AZ SR R

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ARV 3 TR =S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Siu Edmund with Practising
Certificate number P0O5333.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

re T E AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2020 2019
e —T-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
77 BETR AET T
Gross proceeds from disposal HEXZEH ZAIERBELHE
of trading securities 250 41,178
Gain/(loss) from the sale of HEEBBEZRANE
listed equity investments SRR ([EBEHR
at fair value through DMREJIER]) 2L
profit or loss (“FVPL") BABREZWHE (FE) 14 (101,631)
Gain from the sale of unlisted HEBBBERRAAEBIERZ
equity investment at FVPL FEMRARE 2 s 2,725 -
Revenue Y 4 - 353
Other income H A 4 144 -
Changes in fair value of listed BRBRRAABIIERL
equity investments at FVPL FTARAKREZ AR EE 6 9,390 74,578
Changes in fair value of unlisted BEBIEZFZALEIEZ
equity investments at FVPL FETBRAREZANEES 6 (41,452) (32,932)
Impairment of financial assets BREHEKAV R eHEEL
at amortised costs, net BB 14 (1,880) (2,460)
Other operating expenses Hi &R (11,285) (8,375)
Finance costs B& AR 6 (24) (170)
Loss before tax BrEEAIE 1B 6 (42,368) (70,637)
Income tax BiREY 7 - -
Loss and total comprehensive ZARQAFEHEZFE AL
loss for the year attributable FRABERZEABELE
to equity holders of
the Company (42,368) (70,637)
HK$ HK$
B ks
Loss per share — Basic and diluted SREE-EAREE 8 (0.20) (0.38)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R B IR
As at 31 December 2020
R-ZFE-ZZFEF+-_H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-®F —T-N0F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et BET T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Equity investments at fair value BRBHBANE
through profit or loss 5|8 7 RAN IR & 11 100,592 148,319
Current assets REEE
Equity investments at fair value BRBHREARN
through profit or loss SIBR 2 R AR E 11 114,872 98,220
Deposits and prepayments wEe REMR 212 221
Due from securities brokers JIE Uy 58 5 4 40 5R IR 13 1,434 3,909
Other receivables H b e W /I8 14 12,264 15,394
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRE S 736 297
129,518 118,041
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hi s R ETER 616 1,291
Due to securities brokers HEREHFERL 2 FE 15 1 -
617 1,291
Net current assets REEERE 128,901 116,750
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABER 229,493 265,069
NET ASSETS EEFE 229,493 265,069
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 2020

Ro-E-FF+—H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok BETT BETT

Capital and reserves BRAR %
Share capital L& 16 223 186,232
Reserves # 229,270 78,837
TOTAL EQUITY BmER 229,493 265,069
HK$ HK$
Net asset value per share BREEFE 18 1.03 0.14

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of B&HREFEN_ZT-_—F=A=-+1AH

Directors on 29 March 2021. e R )Et o
SHUM Kit Lan Anita HU Xiaoting
WRR =

Director Director

EZE EZE

a-wapraEAT 2000 #5% 1



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN AN =
FEESMERSE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2020 2019
= —F-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Cash (used in)/generated 28 (FTA) /3
from operations Re 21 (4,873) 9,658
Dividends received FriS A% & - 353
Interest paid =ENEUES) (24) (170)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &£ (FrA)
operating activities FFBEEFH (4,897) 9,841
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from placement of shares Ao & IR 10 FT 1S K318 5,336 -
Repayment of bond payables BEEMNES - (10,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEFEFFE,
financing activities (FFR)REFE 5,336 (10,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBRELZEY 2
cash equivalents ®, CR2)FE 439 (159)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHUzREeRBEELE
beginning of year By 297 456
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREEREAS
at end of year represented ZEY(2HEBE
by bank balances and cash THERRE) 736 297
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERRERE IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
R E_FFEF A= —HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAEREE AL
Share
Share Share  Contributed options  Accumulated Total
capital premium Surplus reserve loss reserve Total
[ REE BABH BRERE Ex | HEA A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZF
—A—H 186,232 1,051,569 - 806 (973,538) 78,837 265,069
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ £REER
for the year 2EEBAE - - - - (42,368) (42,368) (42,368)
Contributions and distributions FERDE
Reduction of share capital R B (186,046) - 186,046 - - 186,046 -
Issue of new shares under placing BEEEZTHRG 37 5,299 - - - 5,299 5,336
Grant of share options R BRE - - - 1,456 - 1,456 1,456
Lapse of share options BRI R - - - (391) 391 - -
Total transactions with owners HEFEARFEE (186,009) 5,299 186,046 1,065 391 192,801 6,792
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-2F
+=ZA=+-H 223 1,056,868 186,046 1.871 (1,015,515) 229,270 229,493
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
NG 32 o DN
Share
option Accumulated Total
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve loss reserve Total
A 17 % 8 BRERR RAER [EEAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT EETT BETT BETT BETT EETFT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—-F—H 186,232 1,051,569 501 (903,011) 149,059 335,291
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRAEBRR2EHRLESE
for the year - - - (70,637) (70,637) (70,637)
Contributions and distributions RERSE
Grant of share options it 3¢ - - 415 - 415 415
Lapse of share options PR AR K - - (110) 110 - -
Total transactions with owners BEFARSBE - - 305 110 415 415
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AF+=B=t-H 186,232 1,051,569 806 (973,538) 78,837 265,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR BTG R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-_FFF_H=1—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Unity Investments Holdings Limited was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements also comply
with applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year.
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Notes to the Conso

=IAN
el

el

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatory effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Except as described below, the application
of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2.

idated Financial Statements
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ira B E R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

(i) Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The Group has applied the Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 for the first time
in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material
that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments also
clarify that materiality depends on the
nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context
of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments in

the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Conso
ire BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

(i) Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments
for the first time in the current year.
The amendments clarify that while
businesses usually have outputs, outputs
are not required for an integrated set
of activities and assets to qualify as a
business. To be considered a business,
an acquired set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs. The amendments
also introduce additional guidance
that helps to determine whether a
substantive process has been acquired.
In addition, the amendments introduce
an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under
the optional concentration test, the
acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business if substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
The election on whether to apply the
optional concentration test is available
on transaction-by-transaction basis.

idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Conso
ire BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(a) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

(if)  Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
(Continued)

The application of the amendments in
the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

(iii)  Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments
for the first time in the current year.
The amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected
hedges during the period of uncertainty
before the hedged items or hedging
instruments affected by the current
interest rate benchmarks are amended
as a result of the on-going interest rate
benchmark reform. The amendments
are relevant to the Group given that
it applies hedge accounting to its
benchmark interest rate exposures

The application of the amendments in

the current year had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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idated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost except for financial assets at FVPL which
are measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and all of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December each year. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting year as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses. The carrying amount of the
investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the
recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the
change in the business model (the “reclassification
date”).
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Notes to the Conso
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
include deposits, due from securities brokers,
other receivable and bank balances and cash.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EEEHBEE(Z)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
2)  Mandatory FVOCI 2)  EHEFEBEME E W
R 1ESIR

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory EoREERFME A TEE

FVOCI if both of the following conditions are B EBIEERASZRBIEBEREAR

met and is not designated as at FVPL: B AlZze Rt & ERR

MEREMEENREAAE
k%

(i) itis held within a business model whose (i) ZemEER—ES T
objective is to hold financial assets in ABFA S/ EE K
order to collect contractual cash flows ERBREREREEZ
and for sale; and EBEXFE &

(i) its contractual terms give rise on (i) ZeBMEEZANIER
specified dates to cash flows that are EREFERHELRS
solely payments of principal and interest MEEAXNA® KK
on the principal amount outstanding. BEREHE -

The financial asset is subsequently measured PREEEBEARBEE

at fair value. Interest calculated using the FERERMEEFEZNE

effective interest method, impairment gains B U 55 88 18 DA B SINEE Lk 2

or losses and foreign exchange gains and NS B R o KU &

losses are recognised in profit or loss. Other HEEREMEENRERE
gains or losses are recognised in other ZeMEERIER BT
comprehensive income until the financial asset BEKIEERE BEREM

is derecognised. When the financial asset is ZEWRERZ R E S

derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss BENHOEEBRREREND

previously recognised in other comprehensive -

income is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

3)

4)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument that is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies in
other comprehensive income. The classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

These equity investments are subsequently
measured at fair value and are not subject to
impairment. Dividends are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and shall not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOC],
including financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL, and financial assets
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not
include any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets. Dividend or interest income
is presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Notes to the Conso
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
4) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial
guarantee contract or not a designated
and effective hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial
recognition as at FVPL only if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses
on them on different bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR BTG R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-_FFF_H=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost, to which the
impairment requirements apply in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The Group measures a loss allowance for
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If
the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument.
A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value
of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to an entity under the contract and the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

FEGFHBE (&)

SRMIAE(£F)

THEERE
REBGE B RS LR F5RE
TRERTHERBZ ZHERATEZ
CREEEHFEEBE ((AHEE
FREREERE -HeREER
ERBEERERNKHIREZE
B AEEZASEREHEHEES
BreBitEeRemBERBRE-
HemEEEERR B B X ERUE
IR HIR A E LR AR ERBEN
REAFEHEEEBEBE CHTERZS
RMEEBBEEE-

EHIEEERE
BEHEEERIN SR T ARMFH
NEREERE (ARARERRZ
BE)WB R NG RS R ERAD
REANENERNRSRERER
BHRE R RE < HWER-

RERMEEMS FEBRAREERR
BAENEBKRNEHNRSRELER
FBFHEEBNR e REZHNERNIE
B

EHRREEHRENER T AN
HEMAMB R ENBOSHRESLS
ZEHEEEE AR 1208 A RS
EEBBRERMNESE B HR12(8A
NATREE AN S RITRAENFHKE
Bz Ho2MBEBEEESSR-

A—BAEBAERAF 2020 £5 87



Notes to the Conso
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of
principal or interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
or may have a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE_

F_FFL_A=F—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(iii)  adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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ira B E R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the
following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower.

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event.

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset

at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR BTG R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-_FFF_H=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) TESHBE(Z)
Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIA(Z)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)
Write-off Wz

The Group writes off a financial asset when the
Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Group has a policy
of writing off the gross carrying amount based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised
in profit or loss.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets
any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables and accrual, due to securities broker and
bond payables. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR BTG R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-_FFF_H=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset is capitalised as part of cost of that
asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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ira B E R M
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, when it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made. Expenditures for which a provision has
been recognised are charged against the related
provision in the year in which the expenditures
are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the amount provided
is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption
to short-term leases and low-value asset leases.
Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts
for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
eligible employees. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independent administered fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered
services in exchange for shares or rights over shares.
The cost of such transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value of
share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in
a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined
using the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account any market conditions and non-vesting
conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the vesting conditions
are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the entitlement of relevant employees to the
award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction
of any non-market vesting conditions (“vesting
date”).
share options that is expected to vest ultimately is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior periods is charged/credited
to profit or loss for the year of review, with a

During the vesting period, the number of

corresponding adjustment to the reserve within
equity.

When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured at
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where the fair value cannot be reliably estimated,
in which case they are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, any
deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

FTESHEE (&)

BiE (&)
BEEHMBEENRIEAEAEERSZ
R 2R 8 BR 5t g ) AT B AT A0 BR R B =
R BRHEEBEREMMEERS2EHEKH
B ¥ DARERR

BEEFBIIRRMB AR ZRE
EEfcERMEZEMZRE
7R 52 8] Py 12 )R B M 2 R 2 O] By
BN ERMEEEZ AN A AR # K
g B AR I o

Related parties/connected parties B BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to B EE T R LR E A R 2 A A Sk
the Group. s,

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group.

(@) HWEBATAL RIZALHZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEHBE(E)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued) BES BEAL (&)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fHfFE T3 T_IET—HHJ&# Al E
following conditions applies: REARNEEFRE
() The entity and the Group are members () ZEBEAEEBER-—
of the same group (which means that SBZ2KE QTR (A1
each parent, subsidiary and fellow BRQA] B A A &E
subsidiary is related to the others). AMBARIKILE A
) o
(i) ~ One entity is an associate or joint iy —HEERS—EB
venture of the other entity (or an ZEERAHE E D
associate or joint venture of a member X (H5—ERBRKE
of a group of which the other entity is a REIZEEBETKER
member). CIPA: NS A=
%)
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MEEBEERHAER—F=
same third party. FzaghEe
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a (ivy, —HERBAF=-FEE
third entity and the other entity is an LEETLE M5 —E
associate of the third entity. REZE=ZFNEBZH
/NS
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) EBERAAEENELRE
plan for the benefit of employees of EEMEEEMES
either the Group or an entity related to A58 3% N 2 B AR N BT
the Group. If the Group is itself such a go-MAEERFEAR
plan, the sponsoring employers are also FEtEl }IT/\,\EjJ/Z{E
related to the Group. FMEAEEBHE
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly (viy EEX(a) NFTHA A
controlled by a person identified in (a). T ok HRE S o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

R —FE-_FFf _HA=+—HIFZE
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEHBE(E)
Related parties/connected parties (Continued) A BEAL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)  HEFEE TIEMGE  BIZE
following conditions applies: (Continued) BEASBEHE: (£)
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) @O NFTERIATHE
significant influence over the entity or REEATENLE
is a member of the key management ZERB(AZEBZH
personnel of the entity (or of a parent RAZEBEEENX
of the entity). 8o
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (viii ZEBIEMBEERZ
of which it is a part, provides key ERKE R A MARKE
management personnel services to the I AEEGRRIREMEE
Group or to the parent of the Group. EEBAEBERB-

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

In addition, transactions with connected parties as
defined under the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgement
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. They affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The fair value of unlisted equity investments have
been valued based on the expected cash flows
discounted at current rates applicable for items
with similar terms and risk characteristics. These
valuations require the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows, credit risk,
volatility and discount rates, and hence they are
subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted
equity investments at 31 December 2020 was
HK$100,592,000 (2019. HK$148,319,000). Further
details are included in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements respectively.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in
subsidiaries has suffered any impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due
from these entities are impaired. Details of the
approach are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends,
from the assets and the selection of appropriate
discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would
affect the estimation of impairment loss and cause
the adjustments of their carrying amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted:

idated Financial Statements

BBUBHEERRREH
RitEFEMBERRER AEEYL
ERERMBLGTHASERME
RAFE M RERZ THIFET K&
ARG HREER:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTIBHR 2 &G Z
EERIES:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
EAMBREENFE175% REBREX —T-_-%—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BRMBEREEF 165 Covid-19H8 A & RAl “E-ZFRAH
(BFIAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BAYM B RE LR FE3R BatER 2 iRt —E--F—HA—H
(BFIAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BAMBREERFN MEEERE-F R —E--%—-HF—H

B GRERIE395
BERMBHREENETR
BRI IS EREAR N
BERMBHREEAF16H
(BT A)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—_F_FTFf+_H=+—HIFFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued) 3. ERUNKREEARRKEE ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTI B zEHBZ
SHBEEXR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an A date to be determined
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
AN BREERE105 & BREEHEBENRSIAELE L HANEEN FEBH
BAGERE28 (BFTA) EXEA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- 1 January 2023

current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

ERAGTENE IR (BFIAX) HBEEIBARDAERDURETEZREFSH —T-_=%-H—H
(ZZT-ZF)2HHER]

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use

EREAEANEI6R (BIIAR) VX BMERRE-BRTERENZMETRE T F—-H—H

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract

BR G ERIEITR (BFIX) BEAH EITAHKK —E--Ff—A—H

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 1 January 2022

ERAMBREER (BFTA) EAMBHRELEN - \FE_Z_ZTFH e
iz FEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE_

F_FFL_A=F—HIFE

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs is unlikely to have a
material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance as well as disclosure in foreseeable
future.

(i) Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concession
The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is
a lease modification. The practical expedient
only applies to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

- the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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EE_

3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

()

(i)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concession (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes are not a
lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities
are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have
impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance as the Group does not intend to
apply the practical expedient.

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

- update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018
(the "Conceptual Framework”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in
October 2010);
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (Continued)

The amendments: (Continued)

(ii)

add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope
of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in
a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired
combination.

in a business

The Group will apply the amendments
prospectively to business combinations for
which the date of acquisition is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2022.

idated Financial Statements
IS sy 2% B 5

3. BERUBBREEARREE(E)
(i) BFEMBREENEIR (BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-_FFF_H=1—HIFE

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued) 3. BARUKEREEARREH (£Z)
(iii) Amendment to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS (i) BBMBHREEAES BB
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate S ERE39 - FRAU KR
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 HERE7R BB KREE

RISEASE ) & 78 Bt 15 3R &5 2 R
E165% (BRI A) R REENR

E-FRR
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS BEMBEREERFIR BB
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate FETERE395 BAM KR
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate to the HREANETR BAM B RELE
modification of financial assets, financial BB 458 f2 & 7 B 7% &5 22 A
liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge F169% (BT A) M R E LN
accounting requirements and disclosure F-F_BRILEREE"
requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial TREBENEERENEL
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the ERBEBY B mELERETHR
amendments regarding modifications and (@R T A]: BEEET R+
hedge accounting. SETREIENEE TR ER

B EREEBEENR

- Modification of financial assets, - 2HEE-SREER
financial liabilities and lease HEEEBENBHR - BN
liabilities. A practical expedient is PAEMENRSIAT —
introduced for modifications required BERAFE(BHRHM=E
by the reform (modifications required EAEW S M B #& M e
as a direct consequence of the interest B WwHRELEE
rate benchmark reform and made on an FZRIMER FETH) -
economically equivalent basis). These WHEBEHNEBBRKAE
modifications are accounted for by EBRNME-FTAHM
updating the effective interest rate. All BRI ERAERNEE
other modifications are accounted for WM EERETEE
using the current HKFRSs requirements. BRIB-HREKAEEY
A similar practical expedient is proposed 74 ¥ & 22 Bl 281655 8 7
for lessee accounting applying HKFRS MASTEZETEUZ
16: ERAE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

(iii) Amendment to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Continued)

- Hedge accounting requirements.
Under the amendments, hedge
accounting is not discontinued solely
because of the interest rate benchmark
reform. Hedging relationships (and
related documentation) are required to
be amended to reflect modifications to
the hedged item, hedging instrument
and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying
criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements;
and

- Disclosures. The amendments require
disclosures in order to allow users
to understand the nature and extent
of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group
is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the
entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing this transition.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

(iv)

Amendment to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)
Amendment to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of
right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

(v)

- specify that the classification of

liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments

clarify that:

(i)

the classification should not
be affected by management
intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12
months; and

if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the
right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later
date; and

idated Financial Statements

3. BERUBBREEARREE (E)

(v)

EBGTERE1E (BT A)
HEEIEARBRIIERE U
REBREESH (ZF-FF)
2B @B

ZEER] RS E N FE
RETEENEAES K
HHEERELO T ZEARNBE

BENBERRDARKFRBE
(CREE

- HESBEIBEARY
BEXEFRBDEER
ERNBEHREHFEN
BM-AfEmE %FE

ST

() "EIAEXIE
BEERESNHE
1218 A RIBE
BEHNTE K

(i)  ARBEFRE s
N BGES R
£ & B R m e
i RIZERTF
£ BEERAR
NBE®AAHAE
BRI &

AE—REZEKRBRAF 2020 F K

111



Notes to the Conso
4= A

wINE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

(v)

Amendment to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

- clarify that if a liability has terms that
could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was
revised as a consequence of the Amendments
to HKAS 1 to align the corresponding
wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2020, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification
of the Group’s liabilities.
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3.

el

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRS (Continued)

(vi)

Amendment to HKFRSs Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

The annual improvements make amendments
to the following standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose
of assessing whether modification of terms
of original financial liability constitutes
substantial modification under the “10 per
cent” test, a borrower includes only fees
paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or the lender on the
other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential
confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with
the requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement by removing the requirement in
paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value
of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the
Group.
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REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the investment
in listed and unlisted companies. Revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

iy 28
AEBTIEXBR/IRE LM EIELET
NEl AFEDHER WS

2020 2019
- —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Revenue W 2
Dividend income from listed BRBRIERR
equity investments as FVPL HIBR 2 LR A
REZRBEWA - 353
- 353
Other Income H A A
Government grants (note) BT Bh (BT 5E) 144 -
144 353

Note:  Government grants were mainly granted to the
Group as subsidies to support the operation of
the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purpose of internal reporting, the Group
only has one business segment, namely, investments
in listed and unlisted securities. Business segment
information, which is the Group’s primary basis of
segment reporting, is not required as the Group's
revenue, contribution to operating profit, assets and
liabilities are attributable to this only segment.

Geographical information

The geographical location from which the Group
derives revenue is based on the location of
the markets of the respective investments; and
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.
However, all of the Group’s revenue and non-current
assets are principally attributable to Hong Kong.
Consequently, no geographical information
represented.
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BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAIEE
2020 2019
e 323 —T-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR AT T
This is stated after charging/ gk (FEA)
(crediting):
Finance costs Lg%
Interest on margin financing FREENES 24 170
Staff costs (excluding BETIRAE (ESM
directors’ remuneration): EBRM) :
Employee benefits expense EERMAX 392 366
Contributions to defined REMRFETEMER
contribution plans 34 36
Share-based payment expense PARR 17 7 B2 2 1 R ¢ 1,143 212
1,569 614
Other items HEE
Auditor’s remuneration ZEED B & 360 480
Expenses related to short term lease EEHFELE 2 MY 153 143
Disclosures pursuant to BB LR R
Rule 21.12(1)(c) of F£21.12(1)(c) KIRE

the Listing Rules
Realised (gain)/loss on disposal of HE FTHREZEER

listed investments (Wz=) /B8 (i) (14) 101,631

Realised gain on disposal of HEFEMREZ

unlisted investments BER (2,725) -
Unrealised gain on listed ETRE 2 RER W

investments (1) (9,390) (74,578)
Unrealised loss on unlisted FLEMREZREREE

investments 41,452 32,932

Notes: st -

(i) The amounts are calculated based on the sales @) ZESBEDHIBEBEHEEMSHIER
proceeds less cost of those listed investments. MRS ETIRE 2 AT E -

(ii) The amounts represented changes in fair value (ii) ZECTHETARERTEE LA
of unrealised investments during the year and AEEHREERRECARE
cumulative change in fair value of realised ZBET#E-
investments.

a-waprawran 200 % 115



Notes to the Conso
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

7. TAXATION 7.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made
by the Group as the Group did not derive any
assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

idated Financial Statements

Bg
HREBEZE-_ZE-_ZFEK_FT—hNF
+ZA=+—RHIEFEAEBRTER
BB ERB R A EE
WG BE B TSI H B

Reconciliation of tax expense HIER X YR
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before tax B 5% Bl &5 18 (42,368) (70,637)
Income tax at applicable tax rate of %@ AT £16.5%
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (ZE—NF:16.5%)
B ZEH (6,991) (11,655)
Tax exempt revenue T IE A G W 2 (2,023) (58)
Non-deductible expenses AT HUR R 2 9,008 7,218
Tax loss not recognised RERMIBEE 1,555 16,800
Unrecognised deductible REER AT
temporary difference PRl =R (1,549) (12,305)
Tax credit for the year FABIEE R - -
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LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the Group’s loss attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of HK$42,368,000 (2019:
HK$70,637,000) and the weighted average number
of 209,902,000 (2019: 186,232,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

On 20 February 2020, the Company completed a
share consolidation which involve the consolidation
of every ten shares of HK$0.1 into one consolidated
share of HK$0.001 each (“Consolidated Share”).

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
has been adjusted for the effect of the share
consolidation.

As exercise of share options of the Company would
result in a decrease in loss per share, diluted loss
per share is the same as basic loss per share in year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

BREE
BRERAEBIREFALRR A
BEadBEABRGAEEEBEEEEK
42,368,000C (—Z T — NGB
70,637,0007T) & 2 8 17 & 3@ A% 2 hh
7 ¥ 9 27209,902,0000 (—ZE—Hh
£ 186,232,0000% ) 51 & -
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idated Financial Statements

9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 9. BEENSREBAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments () E=M<
The aggregate amount of emoluments KAEEEDS W E W 2 B
received or receivable by the Company’s SHEBWOT
directors were as follows:
2020
ZBCEE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement  Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payment  Discretionary
fees inkind  contributions expenses bonus Total
#¢ 2UR BiRctE URGAREE
20k BENfE #E®  ZAFHEX BiERA &
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BT BRI BRI BRI
Executive director HiEE
Shum Kit Lan Anita e | - 840 18 - - 858
Non-executive director FHTES
Hu Xiaoting pil3e 180 - - 156 - 336
Independent non-executive BikHTES
directors
Chan Yik Pun BREW (RZZ-%F
(Retired on 29 June 2020) RAZTAEERE) 65 - - - - 65
Chung Fai Chun B8y 120 - - 156 - 276
Hung Cho Sing HiEE 120 - - - - 120
Yu Tat Chi Michael REE(RZBZF
(Appointed on 17 August 20200  NATLBEZ(E) 45 - - - - 45
530 840 18 312 - 1,700
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9.  DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 9. EBNEREEAEME (£F)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () E=EM< (&)
2019
—2-n%
Salaries,
allowances and Retirement  Share-based
Directors' benefits scheme payment  Discretionary
fees inkind  contributions expenses bonus Total
Fe 2R RIREE HRDARE
E3He ENflE 25 A {5 BEfEa ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BB BB
Executive director HES
Shum Kit Lan Anita TR - 840 18 - - 858
Non-executive director FHES
Hu Xiaoting =3 180 - - 203 - 383
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Chan Yik Pun RZR 120 - - - - 120
Chung Fai Chun ERY 120 - - - - 120
Hung Cho Sing HIRE 120 - - - - 120
540 840 18 203 - 1,601
Note: All executive directors and independent Mt KRR BRITEERE
non-executive directors of the Company are VINTEZHREEE

the key management personnel, also related
parties, of the Company. During the year, no
other transactions with related parties have
taken place (2079: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefit in kind
paid or payable to the executive directors
are generally emoluments paid or payable
in respect of those persons’ services in
connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

Directors’ fee paid to the non-executive and
independent non-executive directors are for
their services as directors of the Company.

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year (2079: Nil). In
addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the year (2079: Nil).

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group, four (2079 four)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 9(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other one (2079: one)
individual(s) is as follows:

9.

idated Financial Statements

ESKREREEAEME (&)

(a)

(b)

E=ME (F)
Hiet: (4&)

XN TFHERATEERBY
FATEFZEFHERS
EEREARRESEM
REZ RIS AT -

FR BEFEHEREBEEM
ZHREXRBREER
e (—FE—NF: &)
BN FR - A KB E
AERNEEXNMEER
MAREE - AKX E
& 2 BE LA R BERL
B(ZF-NF:#&)-

REHFHMAL
AEBERERSHFMALS
ME(ZFE-NF - HE)R
B HFMNREMBE®RE
i fE9(a) WFTE-Hir— % (=
F—NF:—FZ)NLTZFHM
mET

2020 2019

—EC-EHF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & K H {th 37 B 260 260

Retirement scheme contributions 3R Kk 5T 2 £ 3 13 13
Share-based payment expense AR REAE 2

A 143 212

416 485
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

ESKREREEAEME (&)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments (b) EBEEHFMAL(ZE)
(Continued)
The emoluments were within the following REZFHMNFLATEHE:
band:
Number of employee
EEAH
2020 2019
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 BT TR R
1,000,0007T 1 1
() Share options granted to the directors of (0 BFERATRESZERE

the Company

Under the existing share option scheme
approved by the shareholders of the Company
on 30 April 2013 (the “2013 Option
Scheme”), the Board may grant options to
those participants who, in its sole discretion,
have contributed to or will contribute to the
Group. During the year, 1,860,000 share
options were granted to a non-executive
director (2019: 1,860,000 (restated)) and
1,860,000 share options were granted to an
independent non-executive director (2019:
nil). Details of the 2013 Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BEARABRER=_ZT—=
FWMA=Z+H#EZEBE
REAE ([ ZE—=FBR
8l ExermE:
ERBERAGLEHBEH AR
SEEHERZz2EBERT
BRE-FR - MIIENTES
% 111,860,000 BE A% #E ( —
T — L5 :1,860,0001 (K&
A1) )&ﬁﬁié&%ﬂﬁ%%%mﬁ
1,860 ooof\ﬁﬁﬂxﬁé (ZF—
FfE)) o ——i,ﬁ\%ﬂxﬁé
%%UZ‘E?I%W%QW%%&EM#
L7 EE -
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10. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the details of the
subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Principal place

10.

idated Financial Statements

B A 7

MIBR=_FTZ
TZA=+T—BARRFEE KRR
BZHBARFE:

E—EFEN T —NF

of business
and place of Particulars of issued  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital held by
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital the Company Principal activities
TEEEBER TARAMBERT
WEARER o 17 B 3L s B BRTREFE RAEEZ LA TEXK
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=84 B B B
2020 2020 2019 2019
ZE-EF CZBIEF ZE-NF ZE-NF
Anchor Talent Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 - - 100% - Investment holding
Islands each
Anchor Talent Limited EERAES TREREEIET - - 100% - REBR
Z2EBR
Excellent Top (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share with no 100% - - 100%  Dormant
par value
KE (FB)BRAF BB 1R BEE 100% - - 100% EEEx
LRk
Gufalore Investments Limited The British Virgin -~ 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands each
Gufalore Investments Limited EBERAEE TREREBEIZT 100% - 100% - BAER
ZERR
Ninotre Investment Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Islands each
Ninotre Investment Limited RERUES 1REREEIET 100% - 100% - REER
ZERR
Pacific Kingdom International The British Virgin -~ 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands each
Pacific Kingdom International EBRAEE TREREBIZT 100% - 100% - BEER
Limited ZERR
Whiterock Holdings Limited The British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - - 100%  Investment holding
Islands each
Whiterock Holdings Limited RERAHE REREEIET 100% - - 100% REER
LR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE_

11.

F_FFL_A=F—HIFE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 11.
PROFIT OR LOSS

ERE/BAAEIRZRARE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current B
Listed equity investments BBz ETRAKRE
in Hong Kong 114,872 98,220
Non-current FERE
Unlisted equity investment BEABEINZ
outside Hong Kong FELEMRARIRE 100,592 148,319

Listed equity investments represent the Group's
investments in listed equity securities that are held
for trading, and therefore designated by the Group
as at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, the net fair value
gain in respect of the Group’s Hong Kong
listed investments recognised in profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$9,390,000 (2019:
HK$74,578,000), and a net gain of approximately
HK$14,000 (2019: net loss of HK$101,631,000)
was recognised upon disposal of the listed equity
investments for the year.

ETERAKREEASERFEES
EHBRARE S 2WE - B EHK'E
BiEEABEBRREIAEIR

i E_E@¢+:ﬁz+—a-$
SERERBRZ2EELMEREZ
N EWEFREL AEE9,390,000
T(ZE—NF:%%74,578,000
L) ERERNEE LTRAK
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ@uxqﬁzﬁ/%gﬁi%@/%%14,ooo
T(ZE-—NF - BEFEAEEK
101,631,0007T) °

/
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11. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 11.
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The unlisted equity securities represent investments
in private entities which are included in the ten
largest investments of the Group as at 31 December
2020. Details are as follows:

idated Financial Statements

ggﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂEZ&ﬁEﬁ
TR ABLFBRER-_ZE-_FF
T+ A=+ —HIAXREBR T KEE
RRFLABR ZIEE -FBT

2020 2019
“E-EE —E-NF
Effective Effective
shareholding shareholding
interest Fair value interest Fair value
ERRE ANRE BRI ARfE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hri BETR BETT
Pure Power Holdings Limited ) (v) 20.64% 19,000 24.33% 41,326
Pure Power Holdings Limited
Keen Champ Investments Limited (1), (iv) 16.00% 66,845 16.00% 73,266
ERHEERAT
Peak Zone Group Limited (i), (iv) 29.90% 14,747 29.90% 33,727

Peak Zone Group Limited
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11.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Movement of during the year (Continued)

Notes.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pure Power Holdings Limited (“Pure Power"”) is
a private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Pure Power
is investment holding and the principal activities of
its subsidiary are the exploration and exploitation of
natural resources in the United States of America.
In March 2021, the Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its interests
in Pure Power at sales price of HK$19,000,000.

Keen Champ Investments Limited (“Keen Champ”)
is a private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Keen Champ
is investment holding and the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are holding of a bundle of forest
trees in the People 's Republic of China.

Peak Zone Group Limited (“Peak Zone”) is a
private company and incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The principal activity of Peak Zone is
investment holding and its subsidiaries are engaged
in the electronic commerce industry specialising in
the provision of integrated application.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
held more than 20% of the effective shareholding
interest in these companies. The investments
in these companies are not accounted for as
associates as the Group had no significant
influence over these companies. In accordance
with the relevant agreement signed between the
Group and these investee companies as well as the
other shareholders of the investee companies, the
Group does not have the right to participate in its
policy-making processes, to appoint directors nor
management and to interchange of managerial
personnel.

11.

idated Financial Statements

ERE/BAAEIRZRARE

(%)

FREH (F)

Wit
0

(if)

(iii)

Pure Power Holdings Limited ( [Pure
Power |) AR RBR LB ST
AL 2 KL A T ° Pure Power )£
DEKATETR MEKNB AR
MEEXEBANENEESREH
BERARKAER - RZEZ—F
= A AEEF L EEMHEAEE
{& 75 #19,000,0007T (! & E 7 Pure
Power 2 # % °

EEREARAR (BB AR
RBRIEESEMKY 2LER
Al EEMEBRBRREER
MEMBARNEIEXZBREFA
AR EE ARAME 2 MhAREE

Peak Zone Group Limited ([Peak
Zone | ) BN B R L RF S 5 T AK
32 FLE A A) e Peak Zone MJE E
EBRREER - AN B A F%

BFEBE EFEHESRE
=P

RERERE AEERZEFR
AR A iB20% BFRAHE - XA
SEEZEARLBEATE N
BRZFRAZRE L EAE R
BRAARRIEAEEEZEH
BRERAEARERBEMBR
HalZhd AREY EESEA
REBIE ZEEEHERENE
BERAE -

AE—REZEKRBRAF 2020 F K

125



Notes to the Conso
A TR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T _FFEF _H="1—HItFE

idated Financial Statements

12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO 12. REHSE
Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule R ETRAE212E 2B E A&
21.12 of the Listing Rules, the Group discloses its BB E A+ RIRE M S B4 R
ten largest investments and all individual investments BEEBBNEEBEEES% ZFTEE
with value exceeding 5% of the Group's gross AIRE BREFRERRGMT
assets at the end of the reporting period with brief
description of the investee companies as follows:
Top ten investments TARRE
2020 —E-EHE
Carrying  Accumulated Dividend
amount unrealised received/
Effective asat  holding gain/ receivable
Number of  shareholding Acquisition 31 December (loss) arising on during Classification
Name of investee company shares held interest cost 2020 revaluation the year of financial assets
EfRELZ
i gt S 2:3 PEES 3]
~ ft=A=+-H BRK#E/ EREY/ -
FRENFER RO E ERRE KB RA ZEEE (B8) ERRE SREENR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3 BETT BETT BETR BETT
(i) Keen Champ Investments Limited 16 16.00% 128,000 66,845 (61,155) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
ERREARLA BRRRRAAENRZERBRATA
(i) WLS Holdings Limited 693,720,000 4.83% 48,513 20,812 (27,701) - Current equity instruments FVPL
ERERERAT BRERRAAENRZIRBRATE
(iif) Pure Power Holdings Limited 1,754 20.64% 159,455 19,000 (140,455) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Pure Power Holdings Limited BRBERALEI R HERBRATE
(iv) Peak Zone Group Limited 2,990 29.90% 90,000 14,747 (75,253) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Peak Zone Group Limited BRRRRAAENRZERBRATA
) AMCO United Holding Limited 55,260,000 2.28% 33,152 13,594 (19,558) - Current equity instruments FVPL
ERERERAA BRERRAAENRZIRBRATE
() China e-Wallet Payment Group 101,970,371 3.72% 39,874 12,134 (27,740) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Limited
FEREAXNREERAE BRBERANBIEZRBRATIA
(vii) Aeso Holding Limited 35,200,000 4.40% 3471 10,208 6,731 - Current equity instruments FVPL
SRERERAT BRBRERANBIEZRBRATIA
(vii) L & A International Holdings 23,864,000 1.55% 99,745 9,307 (90,438) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Limited
L & A International Holdings BRBRRAABIEZRBRATE
Limited
(ix) Milan Station Holdings Limited 33,962,500 4.77% 12,736 8,660 (4,076) - Current equity instruments FVPL
REHERBERAF BRERRAAENRZRBRATE
x) Asia Grocery Distribution Limited 25,430,000 2.19% 4,562 8,138 3,576 - Current equity instruments FVPL

ENREEERAT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s top ten
investments have been listed above.
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12.

[

A% R AR I =t

R E_FFEF A= —HIFFE
INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued) 12. REHEG (&)
Top ten investments (Continued) TREBRE (&
2019 —E-NF
Carrying Accumulated
amount unrealised Dividend
Effective as at holding gain received/
Number of shares shareholding 31 December  (loss) arising on  receivable during Classification
Name of investee company held interest  Acquisition cost 2019 revaluation the year of financial assets
EEEEEY
R-E-AE  BitkER
) ~ tzA=t-H BRUE  ERER/ _
FiRERARHE HRH#A ERRE WERA ZEEE (B#8) YRS SREENE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki3 BETT BETT BETT BETT
0] Keen Champ Investments Limited 16 16.00% 128,000 73,266 (54,734) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
BRREARAA BRERRAABIE ERBRALA
(i) Pure Power Holdings Limited 2,068 24.33% 188,000 41,326 (146,674) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Pure Power Holdings Limited BRBRRAABIEZERBRATA
(i) Peak Zone Group Limited 2,990 29.90% 90,000 33,727 (56,273) - Non-current equity instruments FVPL
Peak Zone Group Limited BRERRAABIE ERBRALA
(iv) WLS Holdings Ltd. 693,720,000 4.83% 48,513 15,262 (33,251) - Current equny instruments FVPL
EEZRER AT BREREAAENEZRBRATA
) Asia Grocery Distribution Limited 25,430,000 2.19% 4,562 13,987 9,425 - Current equity instruments FVPL
TNEERRAA BRBRRAABIEZRBRALE
i) China e-Wallet Payment 101,930,371 3.72% 39,874 11,523 (28,351) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited
PEERTNEEARAT BRRRRAABIEZRBRALA
(vi) China National Culture 485,000,000 4.94% 48,500 6,790 (41,710) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Group Limited )
FERER U EXSEERAF) BRBERANBIGZRHRATIA
vii) SEEC Media Group Limited 301,340,000 4.73% 66,422 5424 (60,998) - Current equity instruments FVPL
FHEREEEARLA BRBERAL BRI RHRATIA
(ix) China Properties Investment 234,990,000 4.40% 71,671 5170 (66,501) - Current equity instruments FVPL
Holdings Limited
FEEERAERERAA BREREAAENEZRBRATA
) KPM Holding Limited 158,780,000 4.96% 52,413 5,081 (47,332) - urrent equity instruments FVPL

ERERARAT
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12.

INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)
Top ten investments (Continued)

Notes.

(i)

(i)

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Keen Champ are detailed in note 11(ii)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2020, the unaudited
consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Keen Champ was HK$973,000. As at
31 December, 2020, its unaudited consolidated
net liabilities attributable to the equity holders was
HK$13,343,000. The fair value was arrived by the
Directors with reference to the valuation conducted
by an independent professional valuer.

WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability and
its shares are listed on Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock code: 8021). WLS is principally
engaged in the scaffolding and fitting out services,
management contracting services and other services
for construction and buildings work, money
lending business, securities brokerage and margin
financing and securities investment business.
For the year ended 30 April 2020, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of WLS
was HK$108,888,000 with basic and diluted loss
per share of HK0.758 cents. As at 30 April 2020,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the owners was HK$524,349,000.
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Pure Power are detailed in note 11(i)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December, 2020, the unaudited
consolidated net loss attributable to equity
holders of Pure Power was US$13,000. As at
31 December, 2020, its unaudited consolidated
net asset attributable to the equity holders was
US$38,641,000. In March 2021, the Group has
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of its interests in Pure Power at sales price
of HK$19,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, the
fair value of Pure Power has been assessed by the
Directors by reference to transactions after the end
of the reporting period.

The place of incorporation and the principal
activities of Peak Zone are detailed in note 11(iii)
of these financial statements. For the financial
year ended 31 December, 2020, the unaudited
consolidated net profit attributable to equity
holders of Peak Zone was HK$2,439,000. As at
31 December 2020, its unaudited consolidated
net assets attributable to the equity holders was
HK$17,508,000. The fair value was arrived by the
Directors with reference to the valuation conducted
by an independent professional valuer.

AMCO United Holding Limited (“AMCO") was
incorporated in Bermuda and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 630). AMCO is principally engaged
in medical devices business, plastic moulding
business, building contract works business, money
lending business and securities investment. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of AMCO
was HK$34,546,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK1.85 cents. As at 31 December 2019,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the owners was HK$106,287,000.

idated Financial Statements
IS sy 2% B 5

REMES (&)
TRRE (&)
fret - (&)
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O Al NS = g
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited (“China
e-Wallet”) was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 802). China e-Wallet is
principally engaged in the provision of internet and
mobile application and distribution of computer-
related and mobile-related electronic products
and accessories. For the financial year ended
31 December 2019, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of China e-Wallet was
HK$74,635,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK2.72 cents. As at 31 December 2019,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the owners was HK$469,569,000.

Aeso Holding Limited (“Aeso”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands and the shares of which are
listed on Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 8341). Aeso principally engaged in
the provision of fitting out work for construction
of newly built commercial premises and residential
developments and renovation (including alteration
and addition) work for existing commercial
premises in Hong Kong. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Aeso was
HK$27,422,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK13.71 cents. As at 31 March 2020, its
audited consolidated net liabilities attributable to
the owners was HK$21,135,000.
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12. INVESTMENTS PORTFOLIO (Continued)

Top ten investments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(viii) L & A International Holdings (“L & A") was
incorporated in Cayman lIslands and the shares
of which are listed on Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 8195). L & A principally
engaged in the manufacturing, sales and retailing
of garment products. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of L & A was
HK$31,600,000 with basic and diluted loss per
share of HK2.47 cents. As at 31 March 2020, its
audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
owners was HK$49,979,000.

(ix) Milan Station Holdings (“Milan Station”) was
incorporated in Cayman Islands and the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1150). Milan Station
principally engaged in the retailing of handbags.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
the audited consolidated loss attributable to
owners of Milan Station was HK$3,108,000 with
basic and diluted loss per share of HK1.19 cents.
As at 31 December 2020, its audited consolidated
net assets attributable to the owners was
HK$113,302,000.

(x) Asia Grocery Distribution Limited (“Asia Grocery")
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8413). It is
principally engaged in the provision of food and
beverage grocery distribution. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, the audited consolidated
loss attributable to equity holders of Asia Grocery
was HK$3,573,000 with basis and diluted loss per
share both of HK0.31 cents. As at 31 March 2020,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to
the equity holder was HK$102,751,000.
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13. DUE FROM SECURITIES BROKERS 13. EURRBRFLKLFNIE
Amounts due from securities brokers represent EWBLHELFBBRELFLL LT
deposits placed with securities brokers for the KREBB e WEKREREER
trading of listed investments which are repayable on %8
demand and interest-free.
14. OTHER RECEIVABLE 14. HEEWFIE
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Other receivable H th fE W SR IE 17,000 18,250
Loss allowance B 18 & 1% (4,736) (2,856)
12,264 15,394
The movements in the loss allowance for ECL of HEmh Bz EHEE BB 2 iR
other receivables are as follows: BiEgHNT
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
At the beginning of the year NG 2,856 396
Impairment losses, net BEEEFRE 1,880 2,460
At the end of the year RER 4,736 2,856
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14. OTHER RECEIVABLE (Continued) 14.
At the end of the reporting period, the gross
receivable of approximately HK$17,000,000
(2019: HK$18,250,000) represent the remaining
consideration regarding the disposal of an unlisted
equity investment in prior years.

15. DUE TO SECURITIES BROKERS 15.
Amounts due to securities brokers represent margin
loans arising from the trading of listed investments
which are repayable on demand. No ageing analysis
is disclosed in respect of due to securities brokers.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, an

idated Financial Statements

HihEWRE (&)

RmERR BRERKKEBEHBE
17,000,000c (ZE— N F: B
18,250,0007T)iE BB EFELE
FELMRAIRE 2 FIBRRE -

BRBHFRLE2RE

BRBFRL FEABESE LHIRE
BrELNRESETR BEERTY
REREE - BREFEL MR
KRB DAL AR B - R 7]
EERS MAKEXBEEMS

ageing analysis does not give additional value in ARER 0 AT I EREAIME (B -
view of the Group's business nature.
16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. B=X
Number of Number of
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares of Shares of Nominal
HK$0.1 HK$0.001 Value
BREE BREE
B80T #%0.001T
EEREA EBEREE HE
'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR BETT
Authorised: BE
As at 1 January 2019, RZFE-NE—HA—H"
31 December 2019 and ZE-NETZA=T—H
1 January 2020 k=_F2-FF—-[—H 20,000,000 - -
Capital Reorganisation (note 1) FRZAREL (A1iE1) (20,000,000) 2,000,000 2,000
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZE+=-A=+-H - 2,000,000 2,000
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAR:
As at 1 January 2019, R-_ZE-nE—A—8"
31 December 2019 and “E-NEFF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 K—E-FTF—F—H 1,862,317 - 186,232
Capital Reorganisation (note 1) FRAEL (A1it1) (1,862,317) 186,232 (186,046)
Share capital issued under BEREBTRA (f1i#2)
placing (note 2) - 37,240 37
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+-RA=+—H - 223,472 223
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

1. The Company completed the capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) on 20 February
2020. It was approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on
13 November 2019 and details are as follows,

a) the reduction of the par value of each issued
share from HK$0.10 to HK$0.0001;

b) the sub-division of each authorised but
unissued share into 1,000 new shares of
HK$0.0001 each (each a “New Share”);
and

Q) the consolidation of the New Shares on the
basis that every 10 issued and unissued New
Shares of HK$0.0001 each consolidated into
one share of HK$0.001 each.

2. On 5 June 2020, the Company completed a share
placing for 37,240,000 shares at a placing price of
HK$0.15 per share to independent investors. Details
of the placement are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 May 2020 and 5 June
2020.
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17.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company
was approved and adopted by shareholders’
resolution at the annual general meeting held
on 30 April 2013 (the “"Option Scheme"”),
unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject
to resolution passed at general meeting of the
Company the Option Scheme will remain in
force for ten years from 30 April 2013. As at
31 December 2020, the remaining life of the Option
Scheme was approximately 2 years and 4 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to reward the
participants who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Under the Option Scheme,
the Board of the Company may grant options to
those participants who, in its sole discretion, have
contributed to or will contribute to the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of
the Option Scheme include any directors of
the Company (including executive directors,
independent
non-executive directors of the Company) and
employees of the Group, any directors or employees
of a company or entity in which the Group has
invested in and any advisors (professional or
otherwise), consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, promoters, any directors

non-executive directors and

or employees of any service providers of any
members of the Group.
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17.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company'’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval of the option
limit; and (ii) the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Participant under the Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any shares of the Company subject
to options granted during such period under any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company)
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief
executive or substantive shareholders (as such terms
as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or
any of their respective associates under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject
to the prior approval of the independent non-
executive directors or shareholders of the Company
as the case may be. Without prior separate approval
from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant
shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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17.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted
may be accepted by the participants concerned
for a period of twenty-eight days from the date of
such offer. An option shall be regarded as having
been accepted when the Company receives from
the Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly
signed by the Participant together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1 as consideration
for the grant of option. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from
the date on which the share option is granted. The
subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of an option under the Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but in any event shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the Company's share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company'’s share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’'s
share.
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17. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 17. BRESTE (&)
Details of share options granted REBREFE
Closing price of
the Company's
shares on
Vesting Exercise Exercisable the date of
Date of grant Number of share options date price period  Options granted
ARFRMR
REBRERS
BEAH BREHE BEAH 1M EHE 2B E
2020 2019
ZB-BE —TNF
Options granted to consultants B =F—/\F - 15,460,000* 8 May 2018 HK$0.1 2 years HK$0.54*
of the Company on HTANH “T-NF BRI WE 10,547 *
8 May 2018 (R5HE%) nANE
(after trading hours) mARFEM
Rt ERE
Option granted to an employee R =T — L5 1,860,000* 1,860,000* 9 May 2019 HK$0.1 2 years HK$0.46*
of the Company on AANA —T-nE BEOAT ME 0467 *
9 May 2019 (RHBR%) RANE
(after trading hours) MAREES
Option granted to RZZ-NEF 1,860,000% 1,860,000* 9 May 2019 HK$0.1 2 years HK$0.46*
Ms. HU Xiaoting, TANA —T-NE BE0IT kS EH0.467
non-executive Director (REBER) TANA
of the Company, on AARRRAFERIT
9 May 2019 EzfEeat
(after trading hours) Kt RE
Options granted to Directors ~ RZTZZF 3,720,000¢ - 11 May 2020 HK$0.18 3 years HK$0.16
of the Company on 1At+-H ZTCEZE A0.18T = 016
11 May 2020 (R5BRIE) RA+-H
(after trading hours) MARRES
it ERE
Options granted to employees R=F=ZFF 11,160,000 - 11 May 2020 HK$0.18 3 years HK$0.16
of the Company on RAT-A e S B0.187T = 016
11 May 2020 (RFHEE) ARt-A
(after trading hours) mAREES
KR
Options granted to employees R-ZE-ZfF 3,720,000 - 26 June 2020 HK$0.17 3 years HK$0.17
of the Company on Vay; Bt oy =! 3 B0 = B0
26 June 2020 (RHHRE) ANAZTRA
(after trading hours) RAARIEER
Rt ERE
Total share options R @R 22,320,000 19,180,000
granted
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17.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Details of share options granted (Continued)

*

The numbers and exercise prices of the Options and
the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the
date of Options granted are adjusted retrospectively
to reflect the share consolidation of the Company
effective on 20 February 2020. For details of the
consolidation, please refer to the circular dated
21 October 2019 and announcement dated
20 February 2020 of Company.

1,860,000 Options were granted to each of Ms. HU
Xiaoting, non-executive Director of the Company,
and Ms. CHUNG Fai Chun, independent non-
executive Director of the Company.

The movement of share options granted and
weighted average exercise prices of share options

17.

idated Financial Statements
IS sy 2% B 5

BRESTE (2)

REBRESSE (&)

* ERECHEB RITEEURAER
AIRMAELEREL B KW
BERETEPFAE  URBAQF
BE-Z-_ZTF-_A-t+HBEENR
ZBRDEH - BEEHIFE B
2B ARBHBPAE-ZT—NF+
AZ+—BzBEkBHRAE=ZE
ZEF A+ HzZRE-

# ARFBEHTEFRBREL LR

ARABBINTESTERE K
1+ & B &$%1,860,00017 B AL AE o

BB g = ) M B B hn g 91T
(8

Number of options

YT E
2020 2019
—g-®F  —T-Af

Outstanding at the beginning of FHRITEE

the year 191,800,000 212,600,000
Effect on Capital Reorganisation BAEHzFE (172,620,000)  (191,340,000)
Granted during the year FAKE 18,600,000 3,720,000
Lapsed during the year FARKM (15,460,000) (5,800,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year FRKTTfE 22,320,000 19,180,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FARAITH 22,320,000 19,180,000
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17. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Details of share options granted (Continued)
The share options outstanding at 31 December
2020 have exercise prices of HK$0.1 per option
(2019: HK$0.16) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 2.46 years (2019: 0.55 years).

For share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2018, the share options
were measured at fair value at grant date with
reference to a valuation report prepared by
International Valuation Limited, calculated using

idated Financial Statements

17. BRESTE(Z)
REBREFE (&)
RZZEZTEF+ZA=T—HRTHE
BRENTEEAETHBREBK
01 (ZE— N5 B¥0.167T) BN
BEHFBENFHAR246F (ZF
— L 1 0.55%F ) °

ERHE_Z—NEFER=_ZT—N\F
+-—A=+—ALFERHNER
- BRELZERBTEERA AR
W ERENE L BHRZ AR ER
ERETIFERZKA B

Binomial Option Pricing model with the following EEEEAE:
key assumptions:
Share price &{E June 2020 May 2020 May 2019
“E-ERFRA ZEB-EFREA —T-NFhA
Exercise price TEE HK$0.17 HK$0.18 HK$0.10
BE0.171 #0187 B#0.107T
Expected volatility (Note below) — FEERR 1B (LA T HiFE) 93% 93% 85%

Expected option life T8 51 8 AR 4
Expected dividends RS,
Risk-free interest rate mR e A X
(per annum)
Fair value of a share option R BB R
at grant date NIXE]
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17.

18.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information.

The Group recognised a total expense of
approximately HK$1,456,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$415,000) in relation
to share options granted by the Company.

There were 223,472,000 (2079: (Restated)
186,232,000) shares, representing approximately
10.00% (2018: 10.00%) of total issued share capital
of the Company, available for issue under the Option
Scheme as at the date of this Annual Report.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the
net assets included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately HK$229,493,000
(2019: HK$265,069,000) by the number of shares
in issue at 31 December 2020, being 223,471,680
(2019: 1,862,316,806).

In the course of preparation of this annual report,
the value of the Group’s unlisted investments
decreased by net amount of approximately
HK$41,452,000, which was made with reference to
independent valuation reports principally. As these
valuation reports were obtained by the Company
after 15 January 2021, the date of the Company’'s
announcement titled “Net Asset Value” (the "NAV
Announcement”), the net asset value per share of
the Company as at 31 December 2020 decreased
from approximately HK$1.216 as stated in the NAV
Announcement to approximately HK$1.03 as stated
in this annual report.

17.
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19.

20.

F_FFL_A=F—HIFE

CHARGE OF ASSETS AND MARGIN FACILITIES 19. EBEEEARREBSEE
As at 31 December 2020, margin facilities from a RZBZZTF+_A=+—08 —%
regulated securities brokers were granted to the RREREAELAAEERERES
Group which were secured by the Group's listed EE MZEEENUAEEETE
equity investment at FVPL, with a total market value #4775 18,612,000 2 FE BB mIZ A
of approximately HK$8,612,000. As at 31 December REIEREZ ETRAREEER R
2019, the Group had not utilised against these Z-NFT+ZA=1+—0 K&EE
facilities. ]Iﬁ@ﬂﬂ;%i? =5-
DEFERRED TAXATION 20. EZEBIER
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from EATEEMEE ZRBERELERE
BE
2020 2019
—ECEF —nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Deductible temporary differences FRBHEAR
from changes in fair value of I BR 2 M AR AR
current equity investments at fair KRERAAEE
value through profit or loss A 2 R HIBR B B
=8 88,206 89,761
Tax losses % E 1R 96,149 97,699
At 31 December R+=H=+—8H 184,355 187,460

Neither the tax losses nor the deductible temporary
differences expire under current tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Recognised deferred tax liabilities and unrecognised
deferred tax assets are not offset as there is no
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.
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CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 21. EFfARS
2020 2019
32 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Loss before tax BrEAIEE (42,368) (70,637)
Changes in fair value of listed BRBREAAEIERZ
equity investments at FVPL ETBRAKREZ
NREE (9,390) (74,578)
Change in fair value of unlisted BRBHEEALEYEZ
equity investment at FVPL ELFHBRAREY
DhEE 41,452 32,932
Impairment of financial assets RS N B BE 2
at amortised cost, net SRBE Y HESE 1,880 2,460
Interest expenses FERAX 24 170
Dividend income % B4 A - (353)
Share-based payment expenses AR REREZ AR 1,456 415
Change in working capital: LEEREE:
Financial assets at fair value BRBERRALEIERZ
through profit or loss TREE (987) 124,903
Deposits and prepayments, other me REMR-
receivable and due from securities H h fE R K
brokers JEM B H S 42 BUR 3,734 11,917
Other payables and accruals and HiENRRETER
due to securities broker IAREBEREBEHFERLZ
I (674) (17,571)
Cash (used in)/generated from E(ffA) /FBRE
operations (4,873) 9,658
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 22.
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following
transaction with China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited and Evergrande Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited, the investment managers of the Company,
which provides investment management service
to the Group. Investment manager is considered
a connected person under Rule 14A.08 of Listing

idated Financial Statements

BB ARS

BRI SR A ISR A H M EENFT
WEZRS/ERIN REAFEE K
SEEFPRALREFSF(BB)BRA
AIMERES (B8)BRAT (AR
B RERE AASEBEIRRIEEE
BRHE)BUTR S - RIE LR A
FUA08IK WEKEBWRAE—RE
AT

Rules.
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$'000
BA Bk 5 BA 1R REME BET T BETT
Previous investment manager of Investment management 550 600
the Company service fee
RRAZATEREKIE REERRBE
Current investment manager of 39 -
the Company
RRAFZBRERE KR
589 600
23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 23. TRIEMEEEERIEE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
bank balances and cash, equity investments,
deposits, due from/to securities broker and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.
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23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors
Price risk

As set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, certain of the Group’s equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss listed
in the stock market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the
Group’s investments in equity securities are exposed
to equity price risk. The management manages
exposure to the risk centrally by monitoring the
change of market prices of the equity from time to
time, and by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different profiles in Hong Kong. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk. At the reporting date, if the
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss had been 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
net loss would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$5,744,000 (2019: HK$4,911,000).

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk for all financial
assets that a counterparty in a transaction may
default on settlement, including bank balances,
other receivables and due from securities brokers.
The maximum exposure equals to the carrying
amount of these financial assets. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

23.
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23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances are placed with
credit-worthy banks in Hong Kong. The securities
brokers are leading and reputable and are assessed
as having low credit risk. Majority of the bank
balances and cash are deposited in reputable
large commercial banks with credit rating of Baal
issued by Moody’s. The Group has not suffered any
significant losses arising from the non-performance
by these brokers in the past and the management
does not expect this position to change in the
future.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
concentration credit risk of 59% (2019: 78%) of the
total receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor. However, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, the Directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual loan debt and
loan regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2020

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2020. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

23.
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cREREEEEREE (&)

SEEREE (&)

=EEE (&)
REZFEZFFLZH=1—HHRSE
SRR R F KB R
TREATREBEASEEEERNEE
BxkEaEERR (EFXZRER
TEHER (RIFEEEMERTES
BEKARBHRATES)ETE) R
RZEZZEF+ZA=T—HHER
RSB -F2IEHEASREEN
BRI 4R 1E -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
WZE-ZF 128 A
At 31 December 2020 +=ZA=1+-H FEEE 2HRMEEBE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE 2 B HE3E R R b7 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BRI BT BT
Deposits i 37 - - - 37
Due from securities brokers — EUEHE LA 1,434 - - - 1,434
Other receivable Hit YRR - - 12,264 - 12,264
Bank balances and cash BOEFRRS
- Not yet past due —KRBH 736 - - - 736
2,207 - 12,264 - 14,471
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23.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 23. SHIEREEEERBEK(£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued) SREABEZR (&)
Credit risk (Continued) =EEE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at R_E_FFL —_A=1—HBI=E
37 December 2020 (Continued) B R FRE R (4E)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
RZZ-NE 12{8 AEH
At 31 December 2019 +-A=+-H FEBR PHEREEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AL EplEAsy 15 kb Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Deposits and prepayments we REMNR 36 - - - 36
Due from securities brokers  EUEHE LR TAE 3,909 - - - 3,909
Other receivables Hit YRR - - 15,394 - 15,394
Bank balances and cash BOGEFRRS

- Not yet past due - R 297 - - - 297
4,242 - 15,394 - 19,636
* For other receivable to which the Group applies * AEEERRBRE KA ENEAM
general approach for impairment, and is disclosed JEWRIE - RS B S Sk M 5114

in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. N3 o
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23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2020 (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales and loans are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is limited because the
counterparty is a well-established securities broker
firm in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of loans, bonds and utilisation of
margin facilities of securities brokers. The Group
will keep reviewing its financial needs from time to
time to determine the timing of obtaining various
borrowings or carrying out fund raising activities.

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining
undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the earliest date
on which the Group is required to settle at the end
of the reporting period, based on the remaining
contractual maturities, are with one year or on
demand (2019: within one year or on demand).

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments, including payment of dividend to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

23.

idated Financial Statements
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 23.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)
Pursuant to the provision of articles of association
of the Company, the Company may exercise its
borrowing power to borrow up to an aggregate
principal amount for the time being remaining
discharged of all money borrowed by the Group not
exceeding 50% of the net asset value. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted
capital. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the
end of the financial period were as follows:

idated Financial Statements

cREREEEEREEK (&)

SBARREE (&)
EREE ()

BB A B B R MR 2 3 A
AFATELERES  EAKSE
58 (BD A 5 % B 5 ok (2 12 20)
5% T BBE R FET0%  AEE
RS S R A A R (AR
SIS LA TR G AR BB AR o OB
BT R B A A L K
AR

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Due to securities broker ERBHELRL 2T 1 -
Less: Due from securities brokers B R IR AR 40 FRIE (1,434) (3,909)
Less: Bank balances and cash B RTEFLERES (736) (297)
Net receivable JE W F 58 (2,169) (4,206)
Total equity BrEm 229,493 265,069
Net of unrealised reserves REREHFRE - -
Adjusted capital TR E R 229,493 265,069
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEEHECHABRERL R N/A R i F N/A 71~ 3 A
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24.

(a)

idated Financial Statements
IS sy 2% B 5

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 24, AREFTE
The following presents the Group's financial TXE2F ARG HERFEBIEES
instruments measured at fair value at the end of the WM EERE13R: AR BEFER
reporting period across the three levels of the fair EZ=BArERRNE D AR ER
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value EZAEESMIA MEtE22R
Measurement, with the fair value measurement BNEE2REHEEIEBEE 2 &
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level BEWAREZ B -WARZERA
input that is significant to the entire measurement. ET:
The levels of inputs are defined as follows:
Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices . F—EB(ZRE) ~NEERE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical EHHENES ZHEREEK
assets or liabilities that the Group can access BERERMSZ 2WME (CREK
at the measurement date; AR
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices . FE_E-EEXBEIVEESN
included within Level 1 that are observable FEHEEER B AR (T8
for the asset or liability, either directly or BE—EAZHRE)
indirectly;
Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for . FoE(HREE) BEXAE
the asset or liability. Z AR BRB AR X
Assets measured at fair value (@) UAAREFEZEE
2020 —BCFF
The Group
Py
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-FE 2-FE £ &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BET T BETRT
Equity investment at fair ERERBEDAAEIEZ
value through profit or loss ~ RARE
Listed equity investments TR ARE 114,872 - - 114,872
Unlisted equity investments FEMRAERE - - 100,592 100,592
114,872 - 100,592 215,464

AE—REZEKRBRAF 2020 F K

151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A TR ERR MR
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BE-E-FFF A=t —AUFE

24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 24, DAREFE(E)
(@) Assets measured at fair value (Continued) (@) LUURAREBEHEZEE(E)
2019 —E-NF
The Group
A&HE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ F_B F=E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Equity investment at fair ERERRANEIEZ
value through profit or loss ~ BARE

Listed equity investments Ik ARE 98,220 - - 98,220
Unlisted equity investments ELTRAKE - - 148,319 148,319
98,220 - 148,319 246,539
During the years ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZT-_ZEFRZT-NF
and 2019, there were no transfers among +-—A=+—HLtFE F—
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value B-Z2_EBEE=ZERAER
measurements. 27 EMEER-
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24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 2. AREFTE(E)

(a) Assets measured at fair value (Continued) (@) UAAREEZEE(Z)
Movement in Level 3 fair value EEEARETEZEE
measurements
Fair value measurement at the end of the RERERE 2 AR ENE:

reporting period:

2020
—F-FF
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit or loss
NREIIRZ
RA&RE
HK$°000
BET T
At beginning of the reporting R & B )
period 148,319
Disposal & (6,275)
Change in fair value NREZE (41,452)
At end of the reporting period RERE RS R 100,592
Change in unrealised gains or R B A RIS B P I
losses for the year included in EEGTAER
profit or loss for assets held at ZERREBR R
the end of the reporting NEEZE
period (41,452)
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24. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(a) Assets measured at fair value (Continued)

Movement in Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

idated Financial Statements

24, ADAREFE(E)

(@) HURAREFEZEE(F)
EZERAAMEGEZEE (F)

2019
—T-NF
Equity
investments
at fair value
through
profit or loss
FHiBE R IR
NREFRZ
BRAIZE
HK$'000
BT T
At beginning of the reporting R & B )
period 181,251
Change in fair value NREZE (32,932)
At end of the reporting period RERE B R 148,319
Change in unrealised gains or R B A RIS B P I
losses for the year included in EEGTAER
profit or loss for assets held at ZERREBR R
the end of the reporting NEEZE
period (32,932)
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)
Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of
valuation technique used in Level 3 fair
value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of
valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
measurement, including the description of the
sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs
for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements,

24.
(a)

DMREFE(E)

UAREFEZEE (&)
EATTBRUARBEZES
EERRE=ELLEEA
H2Z 1 EF M %

ERTABEGARBZTEE
EERRE=ZEBRAAEFEM
Rz BERMHA (BHEREH
KREME=ZELrrEAEZT

ATERREARBE D 2 QUBE
faat) g

Relationship of

31 December 31 December  Valuation Significant unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2020 2019 technique(s) input(s) Range to fair value
It Jmg 22 “E-nE
tZh +ZR EXTURE TIBRRBABER
EREE =t+-H =t-B {AERE BAgE il MEZBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Unlisted equity 81,592 106,993  Discounted cash flow Expected future cash N/A The higher the future cash
securities with future cash flows flows flow, the higher the fair
that are estimated value
based on expected
recoverable amounts,
discounted at rates Discount rates that 11%-12% The lower the discount rate,
that reflect correspond to the (2019: 12%-13%) the higher the fair value
management's expected risk level
best estimation of
the expected risk level
FEMBRAES 81,592 106993 ARRLREZ BHARRER TR AREEREHR
RERURBRE NAERE
BHTRE B LT
BRRMERE HEEHRRKTZ 1%-12%(ZF-1F: HRXHE ArEdR
HERERATZ EEE 12%-13%)
BABMGOFERR
Unlisted equity 19,000 41,326 Sales consideration N/A N/A N/A
securities stated in agreement
FETRAES 19,000 01326 RBAPIBOHERE  TEA T&A T
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24.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Assets measured at fair value (Continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The management of the Group reviews
the estimation of fair value of the unlisted
equity securities that are not traded in stock
markets which are categorised into level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair values of
these unlisted securities are determined with
reference to the valuation reports prepared by
independent professional qualified valuers on
an annual basis. Discussion of the valuation
process and results with the Directors and
Audit Committee is held twice a year, for the
Group's interim and annual reporting.
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25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 25. BI AR R R
2020 2019
—E_THF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI 226,120 262,561
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments Ze RBAR 194 213
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFEARE 356 156
550 369
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals  EAhE R K EFTE A 571 1,291
571 1,291
Net current liabilities REBBEEFEEE (21) (922)
Total assets less current EEHRERARBER
liabilities 226,099 261,639
NET ASSETS EEFE 226,099 261,639
Capital and reserves IR 2 R 6
Share capital N 223 186,232
Reserves i Note
iz 225,876 75,407
TOTAL EQUITY R 226,099 261,639

EXBEEeRN T -_—F=A4
“ A BHERRERE-

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2021.

SHUM Kit Lan Anita HU Xiaoting
MR tH B 1=
Director Director
EFE -
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BE—_F_FTFf+_H=+—HIFFE

25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) 25. H#RRE(£)
Note: Hat -

MOVEMENT OF RESERVE REEE

Share Contribution Share option  Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total
BB EE BARH BRERS RiER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT EETT BETR BETR BETT

At 1 January 2020 i S

—A—H 1,051,569 - 806 (976,968) 75,407
Reduction of share capital EIpEARE: - 186,046 - - 186,046
Issue of new shares BTG 5,299 - - - 5,299
Grant of share options R R - - 1,456 - 1,456
Lapsed of share options B PR 2R3 - - (391) 391 -
Loss and total comprehensive  F R #E N 2 E

loss for the year EEeRE - - - (42,332) (42,332)

At 31 December 2020 R-B-EE

+=-A=+-H 1,056,868 186,046 1,871 (1,018,909) 225,876
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—N%

—A—H 1,051,569 - 501 (906,433) 145,637
Grant of share options R R - - 415 - 415
Lapsed of share options B PSR 2R3 - - (110) 110 -
Loss and total comprehensive FAEERZE

loss for the year BEeE - - - (70,645) (70,645)

At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE

+=-RA=+-H 1,051,569 - 806 (976,968) 75,407
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, BERSHEERAREA ERBENEE
the share premium, subject to a solvency test and the TR N 2N A BB 48 E 72 K4 M2 AR Rl
Company's memorandum and article of association, RERT RO REAIHD KRR
is distributable to the shareholders. The Company RARARRZZEZZEF+=-_A=+T—H
had a distributable reserve of HK$225,876,000 as at 2 ARG 5B 1225,876,0007T
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$75,407,000). (ZZFE—N4F  JBHT75,407,0007T) °
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26.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of new shares

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 8 March 2021 and 18 February
2021 (the "Placing Announcements”) relating to the
Placing of new shares. Unless the context otherwise
requires, terms used in this note shall have the
same meanings as those defined in the Placing
Announcements.

Subsequent to the year end date of 31 December
2020, the Placing of new shares became effective
on 8 March 2021 (Hong Kong time). An aggregate
of 44,690,000 Placing Shares have been allotted
and issued to not less than six independent Placees
at the Placing Price of HK$0.130 per Placing Share
pursuant to the terms and condition of the Placing
Agreement.

The gross and net proceeds (after deducting the
placing commission and other related expenses
incurred in the Placing) from the Placing are
approximately HK$5,800,000 and approximately
HK$5,700,000 respectively. The Company intends
to use such net proceeds for the general working
capital of the Group and for future investments
pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company.

26.
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Financial Summary

YAZ HAL &R
L E
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZEF " T-NEF _E-N\EFE —ET—+F T F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT AT BAETT EETr BT
Results %E
Gain (loss) from the sale of HEFBIEDE
listed investments at fair N ENERZ
value through profit or loss rHEEZ
Wi (BE) 14  (101,631)  (15,402) (169,837) 30,466
Loss before tax B A B 1B (42,368)  (70,637) (123,270) (613,334)  (401,883)
Income tax FriS i - - - - 33,047
Loss attributable to equity RRBERFEA
holders of the Company fE1L 18 (42,368)  (70,637) (123,270) (613,334) (368,836)
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets EERE 230,110 266,360 364,153 497,285 1,208,660
Total liabilities BERE (617) (1,291)  (28,862)  (38,524)  (97,468)
Total equity BIRELE 229,493 265,069 335,291 458,761 1,111,192
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